THE ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE

Session No. 16
SEPTEMBER 26, 2024

ROLL CALL

INVOCATION: Mr. Meyers

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Ms. Lorigo

TABLED ITEMS

ITEMS FOR RECONSIDERATION FROM PREVIOUS MEETING
MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING: Meeting No. 15

PUBLIC HEARING

MISCELLANEOUS RESOLUTIONS:

April N.M. Baskin
Chair

Timothy J. Meyers
Majority Leader

John J. Mills
Minority Leader

Olivia M. Owens
Clerk of the Legislature

VINAL Honoring Timothy J. Drury - Amherst Democrat of
the Year (2024)

VINAL Honoring Joanne Mogavero-Padlog - Amherst
Democrat of the Year (2024)

LEGISLATURE In Remembrance of Mark Mortenson

GREENE Honoring DiCamillo Bakery on National Biscotti Day

GREENE Honoring and Welcoming Mrs. Benjaluk Nof1'
Aukarapasuchart and Declaring September 28, 2024
Thai-Trinidad Rotary Day in Erie County

GREENE Honoring and Welcoming Mr. Kung
Aukarapasuchart and Declaring September 28, 2024
Thai-Trinidad Rotary Day in Erie County

GREENE Honoring and Welcoming Ms. Joyce Adina Ali and
Declaring September 28, 2024 Thai-Trinidad Rotary
Day in Erie County

GREENE Honoring and Welcoming Dr. Nikom Nick'
Moonmaung and Declaring September 28, 2024
Thai-Trinidad Rotary Day in Erie County

GREENE Honoring and Welcoming Ms. Saowalak "Tu'

Wisutthiphon and Declaring September 28, 2024
Thai-Trinidad Rotary Day in Erie County



GREENE Honoring and Welcoming Mrs. Pornthip 'Ow'
Tangtrakoolwong and Declaring September 28, 2024
Thai-Trinidad Rotary Day in Erie County

GREENE Honoring and Welcoming Ms. Wanvisa 'Zaza'
Jitnarong and Declaring September 28, 2024 Thai-
Trinidad Rotary Day in Erie County

TODARO Honoring David Hoch as the Citizen of the Month for
the Erie County Legislature's 8th District

TODARO Honoring the Erie County Sheriff's Office for New
York State Sheriff's Week

LORIGO Recognizing the East Aurora Fire Department During
Fire Prevention Week

LORIGO Recognizing World Animal Day

LORIGO Recognizing the Holland Central School District on
World Teachers' Day

MILLS Celebrating Sam and Annette Accordino on Their
40th Wedding Anniversary

MILLS Recognizing the Cutting Block on National Hair Day

MILLS Recognizing the Park Salon on National Hair Day

DUPRE & BASKIN

Honoring National Hispanic Heritage Month

MAIJORITY CAUCUS

Acknowledging and Honoring National Voter
Registration Day

MAIJORITY CAUCUS

LOCAL LAWS:

Acknowledging and Recognizing National
Childhood Cancer Month in September

LL INTRO. 2-1 LORIGO The Tax Dollar Disclosure Act
(2024)

LL INTRO. 3-1 LORIGO The Meetings Transparency Act
(2024)

LL INTRO. 5-1 BARGNESI Amending the Erie County Charter in
(2024) Relation to Term Lengths and Term

Limits

Finance &
Management

Finance &
Management

Government
Affairs



LL INTRO. 5-2 BARGNESI Amending the Erie County Charter in

(2024) Relation to Term Lengths and Term
Limits

LL INTRO. 6-1 BASKIN & MEYERS The Erie County Language Access Act

(2024)

COMMITTEE REPORTS:

Report No. 11 ENERGY & ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE
Report No. 10 FINANCE & MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
Report No. 10 HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE
Report No. 13 PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE

Report No. 14 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE
Report No. 2 GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
Report No. 2 COMMUNITY ENRICHMENT COMMITTEE

LEGISLATOR RESOLUTIONS:

INTRO. 16-1 GILMOUR, Call for an External Forensic Audit of
BARGNESI, & VINAL  the County Clerk's Office

INTRO. 16-2 BARGNESI & Re-Appropriation of Public Benefit
GILMOUR Funding

COMMUNICATIONS DISCHARGED FROM COMMITTEE:

SUSPENSION OF THE RULES:

COMMUNICATIONS FROM ELECTED OFFICIALS:

COMM. 16E-1 BASKIN 2024 Committee Assignments

COMM. 16E-2 COUNTY Appointment to the Albright-Knox Art
EXECUTIVE Gallery Board of Directors

Government
Affairs

Health &
Human Services

RFP

Community
Enrichment



COMM. 16E-3 COUNTY Appointment to the Zoological Society
EXECUTIVE of Buffalo Board of Directors
COMM. 16E-4 COUNTY Appointment to the Arts in Public
EXECUTIVE Places Committee
COMM. 16E-5 COUNTY Appointment to the Buffalo & Erie
EXECUTIVE County Board of Trustees
COMM. 16E-6 COUNTY Appointments to the Fire Advisory
EXECUTIVE Board
COMM. 16E-7 COUNTY CLERK External Audit of the Erie County
Clerk's Office
COMM. 16E-8 COMPTROLLER Notification of Forthcoming 2024
Series B Bond Sale
COMM. 16E-9 COMPTROLLER Erie County's NYSDOT Single Audit
Report
COMM. 16E-10 COMPTROLLER External Auditor's Management Letter
for 2023
COMM. 16E-11 COMPTROLLER Erie County's Federal Financial
Assistance Audit Report for 2023
COMM. 16E-12 COMPTROLLER Appointment to Charter Revision
Commission
COMM. 16E-13 COMPTROLLER Fiscal Comments Concerning Erie
County
COMM. 16E-14 COUNTY ECSD No. 6 - Lackawanna WRRF &
EXECUTIVE ORF Disinfection Improvements
Project (Contract No. 62-A)
COMM. 16E-15 COUNTY ECSD No. 6 - Lackawanna WRRF &
EXECUTIVE ORF Disinfection Improvements
Project (Contract No. 62-D)
COMM. 16E-16 COUNTY ECSD Nos. 1,4, & 5 - Construction
EXECUTIVE Inspection Term Contract Agreement
COMM. 16E-17 COUNTY ECSD No. 3 - Central Region
EXECUTIVE Collections Facility
COMM. 16E-18 COUNTY ECSD No. 3 - Collection System
EXECUTIVE Maintenance Facility
COMM. 16E-19 COUNTY Authorization to Enter into Inter-
EXECUTIVE Municipal Agreements to Implement

Community
Enrichment

Community
Enrichment

Community
Enrichment

Public Safety

Finance &
Management

Finance &
Management

Energy &
Environment

Finance &
Management

Finance &
Management

Government
Affairs

Finance &
Management

Energy &
Environment

Energy &
Environment

Energy &
Environment

Energy &
Environment

Energy &
Environment

Finance &
Management



the Municipal Planning Grant Program

COMM. 16E-20 COUNTY Acceptance of State Aid for Youth
EXECUTIVE Sports & Education Services
COMM. 16E-21 COUNTY Acceptance of State Aid for Youth
EXECUTIVE Team Sports Services
COMM. 16E-22 COUNTY Acceptance of State Aid for Youth
EXECUTIVE Development Programs
COMM. 16E-23 COUNTY SUNY ECC City Campus Burt
EXECUTIVE Flickinger Athletic Center Pool Pump
Motor Starter Replacement
COMM. 16E-24 COUNTY SUNY ECC North Campus Spring
EXECUTIVE Student Center Cafeteria HVAC
Systems Upgrade
COMM. 16E-25 COUNTY Wendt Beach Park Sewer Replacement
EXECUTIVE Project Amendment
COMM. 16E-26 COUNTY Como Lake Park Shelter Rehabilitation
EXECUTIVE Phase 11
COMM. 16E-27 COUNTY Authorization for Department of Law to
EXECUTIVE Enter into a Shared Employee
Agreement
COMM. 16E-28 COUNTY Appointment of the Commissioner of
EXECUTIVE Social Services
COMM. 16E-29 SHERIFF Personnel Adjustments
COMM. 16E-30 COMPTROLLER Comptroller's Office Review of Capital

Project Spending Resolutions &
Requests

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE DEPARTMENTS:

COMM. 16D-1 DIRECTOR OF July 2024 Budget Monitoring Report
BUDGET &
MANAGEMENT

COMM. 16D-2 DEPUTY EC Comptroller's Office Audit of
COMPTROLLER OF County Owned Vehicles - Notification
AUDIT of Expanded Scope

COMM. 16D-3 COUNTY ATTORNEY  Update on Effort to Hire Accounting

Firm for Independent Audit of Clerk's
Account

Health &

Human Services

Health &

Human Services

Health &

Human Services

Community
Enrichment

Community
Enrichment

Energy &
Environment

Energy &
Environment

Community
Enrichment

Health &

Human Services

Public Safety

Finance &
Management

Finance &
Management

Finance &
Management

Finance &
Management



COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE PEOPLE AND OTHER AGENCIES:

COMM. 16M-1 NYS DEC Notification of Review of EC
Agricultural District No. 15

COMM. 16M-2 CITY OF BUFFALO Transit Mall Service Charge Roll

COMM. 16M-3 THE KNOER GROUP Response to Monitoring Report -
Explore & More The Ralph C. Wilson
Jr. Children's Museum

ANNOUNCEMENTS:

MEMORIAL RESOLUTIONS:

ADJOURNMENT:

Energy &
Environment

Government
Affairs

Finance &
Management



Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT

VINAL

Honoring Timothy J. Drury - Amherst Democrat of the Year
(2024)

24PROC. 16-1

Attachments




STATE OF NEW YORK

LEGISLATURE OF ERIE COUNTY
BUFFALQO, NY, SEPTEMBER 18, 2024

Honoring Timothy J. Drury EE
Ambherst Democratic of the Year (2024)

WHEREAS, Timothy J. Drury has fought to ensure Western New York sees its fair share

inside of the courtroom; and

WHEREAS, Timothy J. Drury, is well known and recognized as a dedicated, passionate
and sincere Judge in Erie County who established himself a master of the language and brought

humanity, humility, heart and humor to the bench; and

WHEREAS, Mr.Drury and his impact throughout Western New York has been consistent,

exceptional and supportive; and

WHEREAS, Drury attended Georgetown University in 1963 for his bachelor's degree and
the State University of New York at Buffalo School of Law in 1967 for his J.D.;and

WHEREAS, known by many as a top homicide prosecutor in the Erie County District
Attorney’s Office in the early part of his career, Mr. Drury was elected to Buffalo City Court in
1979, then to Erie County Court in 1987 before becoming a New York State Supreme Court justice
in 2007; and

WHEREAS, Timothy was always available to police and to attorneys for defendants and

bail bondsman's around the clock so that someone didn't have to stay in jail; and

WHEREAS, outside of his exceptional accolades and accomplishments, Timothy is a proud

husband and father; and



WHEREAS, his wife and daughter remain active and devoted in the Catholic community

as members through St. Joe's University Church; and

WHEREAS, Timothy Drury knows and understands the importance of growing and
protecting our community and will forever be remembered as a man who dedicated to assist and

support the needs of so many residents in Erie County; and

WHEREAS, this Honorable Body recognizes individuals such as Timothy J. Drury, a man
who has provided his leadership, services & phenomenal skillset as a phenomenal judge

representing Erie County and New York State

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT

RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature does hereby applaud and recognize Timothy
J. Drury, for his service in our community and recognize his exceptional dedication and proudly
recognize his latest honor in being named “Democrat of the Year”, on behalf of the Ambherst

Democratic Committee.

Hon. Jeanne M. Vinal
Erie County Legislator, 5* District



Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT

VINAL

Honoring Joanne Mogavero-Padlog - Amherst Democrat of the
Year (2024)

24PROC. 16-2

Attachments




STATE OF NEW YORK

LEGISLATURE OF ERIE COUNTY
BUFFALQ, NY, SEPTEMBER 18, 2024

Honornng Joanne Mogavero-Padlog
Ambherst Democratic of the Year (2024)

WHEREAS, Joanne Mogavero-Padlog grew up in the Town of Tonawanda and attended
St. Andrew’s Church; and

WHEREAS, from a very early age, Joanne walked in the footsteps of her mother, who

instilled in her the importance of hard work, the love of God and the love of humanity; and

WHEREAS, after graduating from Kenmore West, Joanne graduated from Buffalo State
College with a degree in Social Work; and

WHEREAS, Joanne has been married to Bob Padlog for 36 years and from their union in

marriage, they have two daughters, Alyssa and Cara; and
WHEREAS, Joanne and her family moved to Amherst 25 years ago; and

WHEREAS, several years after moving to Ambherst, Joanne became involved with the

Ambherst Democratic Committee; and

WHEREAS, Joanne has worked on many campaigns, walking door to door, making phone

calls, sending Friend to Friend cards and attending fundraisers; and

WHEREAS, she has also partnered with other committee members to host fundraising

events at her residence; and



WHEREAS, Joanne worked for the Erie County Department of Social Services in Child
Welfare for 32 years; and

WHEREAS, within days after her official retirement in 2017, Joanne began volunteering

her time tutoring refugee children in an after-school program; and

WHEREAS, Joanne continues to provide financial support to Catholic Charities Refugee

Program through gift cards, toiletries, diapers, school supplies and household items; and

WHEREAS, Joanne can also be found thrift store shopping, collecting clothing and

household items to donate for youth living at Compass House; and

WHEREAS, her unprecedented journey thus far is nothing short of extraordinary and it is
with great admiration that this Honorable Body acknowledges and thanks, Joanne Mogavero-
Padlog, for her leadership, solidifying her impact and her genuine character through her work and

service to the community in building a better society.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT

RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature does hereby applaud and recognize Joanne
Mogavero-Padlog for her service to the Town of Amherst and Erie County and recognize her
exceptional dedication and proudly recognize her latest honor in being named “Democrat of the

Year”, on behalf of the Amherst Democratic Committee.

Hon. Jeanne M. Vinal
Erie County Legislator, 5* District



Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT

LEGISLATURE

In Remembrance of Mark Mortenson

24PROC. 16-3

Attachments




STATE OF NEW YORK

LEGISLATURE OF ERIE COUNTY
BUFFALO, NY, SEPTEMBER 26, 2024

In Remembrance of Mark Mortenson

WHEREAS, Almighty God, in His infinite wisdom, on September 14, 2024, removed from
our midst Mark Mortenson, in whose death we have lost a loving husband, father, son valued and
respected citizen, and whose family has lost a leader, kind and devoted member; and

WHEREAS, Mark Mortenson earned his undergraduate degree from California State
University at Fullerton and his master’s degree from Woodbury University; and

WHEREAS, prior to joining the Botanical Gardens in March 2022, Mark served as
exceptional leadership roles such as vice president with the Walt Disney Company, a dual role as
president and CEO of the Richardson Center Corporation and executive director of the Lipsey
Architecture Center Buffalo; and

WHEREAS, Mark led the transformation efforts at the Buffalo Museum of Science and
Tifft Nature Preserve and held leadership positions at The Arc Erie County, a non-profit agency
that supports children and adults with disabilities; and

WHEREAS, to those who worked with Mark saw him as a visionary leader who embodied
the spirit of the 'Wow, Wonder, Welcome' philosophy’, enriching the experience of every guest
who visited the Botanical Gardens; and

WHEREAS, Mark will be best remembered for his commitment to service, as his drive to
be the best was seen across his responsibilities, his warmth, generosity, dedication and making a
lasting impact on all who had the privilege of knowing him; and

WHEREAS, Mark displayed an exceptional work ethic and drive in the most demanding
situations and will be forever be revered and remembered as a leader and a dedicated member of
the Buffalo Botanical Gardens; and

WHEREAS, it is the sense of this Legislative Body to honor and pay tribute to the life of
Mark Mortenson, whose dedication to our community shall be remembered as an inspiration
worthy to be admired, emulated and honored.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT



RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature does hereby moum the passing Mark
Mortenson and pause in its deliberations to recognize his praiseworthy life, his love of family and
for his commitment and devotion to the betterment of our community; and be it further

RESQLVED, that the Erie County Legislature express its sympathy and condolences to the
Mortenson family, his husband, children, parents, the Buffalo Botanical Gardens, and his many
friends, knowing full well that he has received his eternal and glorified reward in Heaven, having
heard the consoling words of the Master, “Well done, thou good faithful servant.”

Hon. April N.M. Baskin
Chair of the Legislature
Erie County Legislator, 2" District

Hon. John J. Mills
Minority Leader
Erie County Legislator, 11" District

Hon. Michael H. Kooshoian
Erie County Legislator, 3 District

Hon. Jeanne M. Vinal
Erie County Legislator, 5" District

Hon. Frank J. Todaro
Erie County Legislator, 8" District

Hon. Lindsay R. Lorigo
Erie County Legislator, 10" District

Hon. Timothy J. Meyers
Majority Leader
Erie County Legislator, 7" District

Hon. Lawrence J. Dupre
Erie County Legislator, I** District

Hon. John A. Bargnesi Jr.
Erie County Legislator, 4" District

Hon. Christopher D. Greene
Erie County Legislator, 6" District

Hon. John J. Gilmour
Erie County Legislator, 9" District

Olivia M. Owens
Clerk of the Legislature



Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT

GREENE

Honoring DiCamillo Bakery on National Biscotti Day

24PROC. 16-4

Attachments




STATE OF NEW YORK

LEGISLATURE OF ERIE COUNTY
BUFFALO, N.Y. SEPTEMBER 26, 2024 A.D.

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT at a regular session of the Legislature of Erie County held in Old County Hall, in
the City of Buffalo, on the 26" day of September 2024 A.D., a resolution was adopted, of which the following
is a true copy:

Honoring DiCamillo Bakery on National Biscotti Day

WHEREAS, DiCamillo Bakery, founded in 1920 by Tomaso and Addolorata DiCamillo in Niagara Falls, New
York, has been a pillar of culinary excellence and a treasured part of our local community, originally delivering
freshly baked bread to neighbors by horse-drawn wagons; and

WHEREAS, DiCamillo Bakery is nationally recognized for providing some of the finest Italian biscotti and
cookies. with a collection of award-winning varieties that include iconic offerings like Biscotti Di Vino,
Biscotti Di Prato, and Biscotti Amaretti, which have defined the American concept of biscotti and eamed the
bakery prestigious accolades, such as being rated #1 in a New York Times nationwide taste test; and

WHEREAS, DiCamillo’s Biscotti Di Vino wine cookies were first introduced in 1979 to gourmet stores in
New York City and played a pivotal role in igniting a biscotti revolution in the U.S., inspiring what was later
dubbed “The Biscotti Decade” by The New York Times; and

WHEREAS, with three locations across Western New York, two in Niagara Falls and one in Williamsville,
DiCamillo Bakery continues to delight customers with its wide variety of traditional and innovative Italian
baked goods, preserving a century-old family heritage; and

WHEREAS, for over a century, DiCamillo Bakery has been a symbol of craftsmanship, tradition, and family
values, continuing to be family-owned and operated, with the third and fourth generations carrying on the
legacy of Tomaso and Addolorata.

NOW. THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Erie County Legislature pauses in its deliberations to proudly
honor DiCamillo Bakery for its outstanding contributions to the culinary arts, its commitment to excellence,
and its role in elevating the prominence of Italian biscotti and cookaies, and hereby recognizes National Biscotti
Day in Erie County as a celebration of this beloved institution's impact on both the local and national level.

CHRISTOPHER D. GREENE

Erie County Legislator, District 6




Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT

GREENE

Honoring and Welcoming Mrs. Benjaluk 'Not'
Aukarapasuchart and Declaring September 28, 2024 Thai-
Trinidad Rotary Day in Erie County

24PROC. 16-5

Attachments




STATE OF NEW YORK
LEGISLATURE OF ERIE COUNTY
BUFFALO, N Y. SEPTEMBER 26, 2024 %.D.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT art a regular session of the Legislature of Erie County held in Old
County Hall, in the City of Buffalo, on the 26" day of September 2024 A.D., a resolution was
adopted, of which the following is a true copy:

Honoring and Welcoming Mrs. Benjaluk ‘Noi’ Aukarapasuchart and
Declaring September 28, 2024 Thai-Trinidad Rotary Day in Erie County

WHEREAS, Mrs. Benjaluk 'Noi' Aukarapasuchart, a distinguished Rotarian, has dedicated her
life to the Rotary motto of "Service Above Self," embodying the highest ideals of community
service, leadership, and international goodwill; and

WHEREAS, Mrs. Aukarapasuchart has traveled from Thailand and Trinidad to visit Erie County,
bringing with her a wealth of knowledge, cultural diversity, and a deep commitment to fostering
global understanding and cooperation; and

WHEREAS, Mrs. Aukarapasuchart’s tireless efforts and unwavering dedication have
significantly contributed to the advancement of numerous humanitarian projects, improving the
lives of countless individuals across the globe and inspiring others to follow in her footsteps; and

WHEREAS, the Rotary Club of Clarence, along with its members and the broader community,
wish to honor Mrs. Aukarapasuchart's exceptional contributions to society and recognize the
strong bonds of friendship and collaboration between the Town of Clarence, Erie County,
Thailand, and Trinidad; and

WHEREAS, the 28th of September marks a special occasion to celebrate and acknowledge the
impact of Rotary's work on an international scale, and the unique and enduring relationships
between our communities.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Erie County Legislature pauses in its deliberations to
honor Mrs. Benjaluk ‘Noi” Aukarapasuchart and declare September 28, 2024, Thai-Trinidad
Rotary Day in Erie County.

CHRISTOPHER D. GREENE
Erie County Legislator, District 6



Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT

GREENE

Honoring and Welcoming Mr. Kung Aukarapasuchart and
Declaring September 28, 2024 Thai-Trinidad Rotary Day in
Erie County

24PROC. 16-6

Attachments




STATE OF NEW YORK
LEGISLATURE OF ERIE COUNTY
BUFFALO, N Y. SEPTEMBER 26, 2024 A.D.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT ar a regular session of the Legislature of Erie County held in Old
County Hall, in the City of Buffalo, on the 26" day of September 2024 A.D., a resolution was
adopted, of which the following is a true copy:

Honoring and Welcoming Mr. Kung Aukarapasuchart and
Declaring September 28, 2024 Thai-Trinidad Rotary Day in Erie County

WHEREAS, Mr. Kung Aukarapasuchart, a distinguished Rotarian, has dedicated her life to the
Rotary motto of "Service Above Self," embodying the highest ideals of community service,
leadership, and international goodwill; and

WHEREAS, Mr. Aukarapasuchart has traveled from Thailand and Trinidad to visit Erie County,
bringing with her a wealth of knowledge, cultural diversity, and a deep commitment to fostering
global understanding and cooperation; and

WHEREAS, Mr. Aukarapasuchart’s tireless efforts and unwavering dedication have significantly
contributed to the advancement of numerous humanitarian projects, improving the lives of
countless individuals across the globe and inspiring others to follow in her footsteps; and

WHEREAS, the Rotary Club of Clarence, along with its members and the broader community,
wish to honor Mr. Aukarapasuchart's exceptional contributions to society and recognize the
strong bonds of friendship and collaboration between the Town of Clarence, Erie County,
Thailand, and Trinidad; and

WHEREAS, the 28th of September marks a special occasion to celebrate and acknowledge the
impact of Rotary's work on an international scale, and the unique and enduring relationships
between our communities.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Erie County Legislature pauses in its deliberations to
honor Mr. Kung Aukarapasuchart and declare September 28, 2024, Thai-Trinidad Rotary Day
in Erie County.

CHRISTOPHER D. GREENE
Erie County Legislator, District 6



Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT

GREENE

Honoring and Welcoming Ms. Joyce Adina Ali and Declaring
September 28, 2024 Thai-Trinidad Rotary Day in Erie County

24PROC. 16-7

Attachments




STATE OF NEW YORK
LEGISLATURE OF ERIE COUNTY
BUFFALO, N Y. SEPTEMBER 26, 2024 &X.D.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT at a regular session of the Legislature of Evie County held in Old
County Hall, in the City of Buffalo, on the 26" day of September 2024 A.D., a resolution was
adopted, of which the following is a true copy:

Honoring and Welcoming Ms. Joyce Adina Ali and
Declaring September 28, 2024, Thai-Trinidad Rotary Day in Erie County

WHEREAS, Ms. Joyce Adina Ali, a distinguished Rotarian, has dedicated her life to the Rotary
motto of "Service Above Self," embodying the highest ideals of community service, leadership,
and international goodwill; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Joyce Adina Ali has traveled from Thailand and Trinidad to visit Erie County,
bringing with her a wealth of knowledge, cultural diversity, and a deep commitment to fostering
global understanding and cooperation; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Joyce Adina Ali’s tireless efforts and unwavering dedication have significantly
contributed to the advancement of numerous humanitarian projects, improving the lives of
countless individuals across the globe and inspiring others to follow in her footsteps; and

WHEREAS, the Rotary Club of Clarence, along with its members and the broader community,
wish to honor Ms. Joyce Adina Ali's exceptional contributions to society and recognize the strong
bonds of friendship and collaboration between the Town of Clarence, Erie County, Thailand, and
Trinidad; and

WHEREAS, the 28th of September marks a special occasion to celebrate and acknowledge the
impact of Rotary's work on an international scale, and the unique and enduring relationships
between our communities.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Erie County Legislature pauses in its deliberations to
honor Ms. Joyce Adina Ali and declare September 28, 2024, Thai-Trinidad Rotary Day in Erie
County.

CHRISTOPHER D. GREENE
Erie County Legislator, District 6



Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT

GREENE

Honoring and Welcoming Dr. Nikom Nick' Moonmaung and
Declaring September 28, 2024 Thai-Trinidad Rotary Day in
Erie County

24PROC. 16-8

Attachments




STATE OF NEW YORK

LEGISLATURE OF ERIE COUNTY
BUFFALOQ, N.Y. SEPTEMBER 26, 2024 A.D.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT at a regular session of the Legislature of Erie County held in Old
County Hall, in the City of Buffalo, on the 26" day of September 2024 A.D., a resolution was
adopted, of which the following is a true copy:

Honoring and Welcoming Dr. Nikom 'Nick' Moonmaung and
Declaring September 28, 2024 Thai-Trinidad Rotary Day in Erie County

WHEREAS, Dr. Nikom 'Nick' Moonmaung, a distinguished Rotarian, has dedicated her life to
the Rotary motto of "Service Above Self," embodying the highest ideals of community service,
leadership, and international goodwill; and

WHEREAS, Dr. Moonmaung has traveled from Thailand and Trinidad to visit Erie County,
bringing with her a wealth of knowledge, cultural diversity, and a deep commitment to fostering
global understanding and cooperation; and

WHEREAS, Dr. Moonmaung’s tireless efforts and unwavering dedication have significantly
contributed to the advancement of numerous humanitarian projects, improving the lives of
countless individuals across the globe and inspiring others to follow in her footsteps: and

WHEREAS, the Rotary Club of Clarence, along with its members and the broader community,
wish to honor Dr. Moonmaung's exceptional contributions to society and recognize the strong
bonds of friendship and collaboration between the Town of Clarence, Erie County, Thailand, and
Trinidad; and

WHEREAS, the 28th of September marks a special occasion to celebrate and acknowledge the
impact of Rotary's work on an international scale, and the unique and enduring relationships
between our communities.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVYED, the Erie County Legislature pauses in its deliberations to
honor Dr. Nikem 'Nick' Moonmaung and declare September 28, 2024, Thai-Trinidad Rotary
Day in Erie County.

CHRISTOPHER D. GREENE
Erie County Legislator, District 6




Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT

GREENE

Honoring and Welcoming Ms. Saowalak 'Tu' Wisutthiphon
and Declaring September 28, 2024 Thai-Trinidad Rotary Day
in Erie County

24PROC. 16-9

Attachments




e B TTF SR TR Tha 5T

i i-inEA WFCE LT

STATE OF NEW YORK
LEGISLATURE OF ERIE COUNTY
BUFFALO, N Y. SEPTEMBER 26, 2024 A.D.

1 HEREBY CERTIFY THAT at a regular session of the Legislature of Erie County held in Old
County Hall, in the City of Buffalo, on the 26" day of September 2024 A.D., a resolution was
adopted, of which the following is a true copy:

Honoring and Welcoming Ms. Saowalak 'Tu' Wisutthiphon and
Declaring September 28, 2024 Thai-Trinidad Rotary Day in Erie County

WHEREAS, Ms. Saowalak 'Tu’ Wisutthiphon, a distinguished Rotarian, has dedicated her life to
the Rotary motto of "Service Above Self," embodying the highest ideals of community service,
leadership, and international goodwill; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Wisutthiphon has traveled from Thailand and Trinidad to visit Erie County,
bringing with her a wealth of knowledge, cultural diversity, and a deep commitment to fostering
global understanding and cooperation; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Wisutthiphon'’s tireless efforts and unwavering dedication have significantly
contributed to the advancement of numerous humanitarian projects, improving the lives of
countless individuals across the globe and inspiring others to follow in her footsteps; and

WHEREAS, the Rotary Club of Clarence, along with its members and the broader community,
wish to honor Ms. Wisutthiphon's exceptional contributions to society and recognize the strong
bonds of friendship and collaboration between the Town of Clarence, Erie County, Thailand, and
Trinidad; and

WHEREAS, the 28th of September marks a special occasion to celebrate and acknowledge the
impact of Rotary's work on an international scale, and the unique and enduring relationships
between our communities.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Erie County Legislature pauses in its deliberations to
honor Ms. Saowalak 'Tu’' Wisutthiphon and declare September 28, 2024, Thai-Trinidad Rotary
Day in Erie County.

CHRISTOPHER D. GREENE
Erie County Legislator, District 6

TRER

EE



Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT

GREENE

Honoring and Welcoming Mrs. Pornthip 'Ow'
Tangtrakoolwong and Declaring September 28, 2024 Thai-
Trinidad Rotary Day in Erie County

24PROC. 16-10

Attachments




STATE OF NEW YORK
LEGISLATURE OF ERIE COUNTY
BUFFALO, N.Y. SEPTEMBER 26, 2024 &.D.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT ar a regular session of the Legislature of Erie County held in Old
County Hall, in the City of Buffalo, on the 26" day of September 2024 A.D., a resolution was
adopted, of which the following is a true copy:

Honoring and Welcoming Mrs. Pornthip 'Ow' Tangtrakoolwong and
Declaring September 28, 2024 Thai-Trinidad Rotary Day in Erie County

WHEREAS, Mrs. Pornthip 'Ow’ Tangtrakoolwong, a distinguished Rotarian, has dedicated her
life to the Rotary motto of "Service Above Self," embodying the highest ideals of community
service, leadership, and international goodwill; and

WHEREAS, Mrs. Tangtrakoolwong has traveled from Thailand and Trinidad to visit Erie County,
bringing with her a wealth of knowledge, cultural diversity, and a deep commitment to fostering
global understanding and cooperation; and

WHEREAS, Mrs. Tangtrakoolwong’s tireless efforts and unwavering dedication have
significantly contributed to the advancement of numerous humanitarian projects, improving the
lives of countless individuals across the globe and inspiring others to follow in her footsteps; and

WHEREAS, the Rotary Club of Clarence, along with its members and the broader community,
wish to honor Mrs. Tangtrakoolwong’s exceptional contributions to society and recognize the
strong bonds of friendship and collaboration between the Town of Clarence, Erie County,
Thailand, and Trinidad; and

WHEREAS, the 28th of September marks a special occasion to celebrate and acknowledge the
impact of Rotary's work on an international scale, and the unique and enduring relationships
between our communities.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Erie County Legislature pauses in its deliberations to
honor Mrs. Pornthip 'Ow' Tangtrakeolwong and declare September 28, 2024, Thai-Trinidad
Rotary Day in Erie County.

CHRISTOPHER D. GREENE
Erie County Legislator, District 6



Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT

GREENE

Honoring and Welcoming Ms. Wanvisa 'Zaza' Jitnarong and
Declaring September 28, 2024 Thai-Trinidad Rotary Day in
Erie County

24PROC. 16-11

Attachments




STATE OF NEW YORK
LEGISLATURE OF ERIE COUNTY
BUFFALO, N Y. SEPTEMBER 26, 2024 &.D.

[ HEREBY CERTIFY THAT at a regular session of the Legislature of Erie County held in Old
County Hall, in the City of Buffalo, on the 26" day of September 2024 A.D., a resolution was
adopted, of which the following is a true copy:

Honoring and Welcoming Ms. Wanvisa 'Zaza' Jitnarong and
Declaring September 28, 2024 Thai-Trinidad Rotary Day in Erie County

WHEREAS, Ms. Wanvisa 'Zaza' Jitnarong, a distinguished Rotarian, has dedicated her life to
the Rotary motto of "Service Above Self," embodying the highest ideals of community service,
leadership, and international goodwill; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Jitnarong has traveled from Thailand and Trinidad to visit Erie County, bringing
with her a wealth of knowledge, cultural diversity, and a deep commitment to fostering global
understanding and cooperation; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Jitnarong’s tireless efforts and unwavering dedication have significantly
contributed to the advancement of numerous humanitarian projects, improving the lives of
countless individuals across the globe and inspiring others to follow in her footsteps; and

WHEREAS, the Rotary Club of Clarence, along with its members and the broader community,
wish to honor Ms. Jitnarong’s exceptional contributions to society and recognize the strong bonds
of friendship and collaboration between the Town of Clarence, Erie County, Thailand, and
Trinidad; and

WHEREAS, the 28th of September marks a special occasion to celebrate and acknowledge the
impact of Rotary's work on an international scale, and the unique and enduring relationships
between our communities.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Erie County Legislature pauses in its deliberations to
honor Ms. Wanvisa 'Zaza' Jitnarong and declare September 28, 2024, Thai-Trinidad Rotary Day
in Erie County.

CHRISTOPHER D. GREENE
Erie County Legislator, District 6



Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT

TODARO

Honoring David Hoch as the Citizen of the Month for the Erie
County Legislature's 8th District

24PROC. 16-12

Attachments




STATE OF NEW YORK
LEGISLATURE OF ERIE COUNTY

BUFFALO, N.Y., SEPTEMBER 26, 2024, A.D.

1 HEREBY CERTIFY THAT at a regular session of the Legislature of Erie County held in Old County
Hall, in the City of Buffalo, on the 26" day of September 2024 A.D., a resolution was adopted, of
which the following is a true copy:

Ho'noring David Hoch as the Citizen of the Month for
the Erie County Legislature’s 8" District

WHEREAS, David Hoch has spent over forty-eight years with the Depew-Lancaster Boys & Girls
Club, serving as mentor, leader, and role model to thousands of children and young adults, instilling in
them the values of teamwork, responsibility, and perseverance; and

WHEREAS, alongside his loving wife Cathy, to whom he has been married for forty-eight years,
David Hoch raised two wonderful children, David and Cheryl, and is a proud grandfather to Brayden,
Parker, Addilyn, Benjamin, and Mia; and

WHEREAS, David Hoch was first hired at the Depew-Lancaster Boys & Girls Club as a program
director in January of 1976 and quickly became the Depew Unit Director in April of that year,
eventually rising to the position of Executive Director in January 1996; and

WHEREAS, following his passion as a standout basketball player at Buffalo State College, David
Hoch started the high school basketball summer league at the Depew-Lancaster Boys and Girls Club
in 1989, which continues to thrive, offering generations of students a place to grow, compete, and
forge lifelong friendships; and

WHEREAS, David Hoch’s dedication was recognized by the Boys and Girls Clubs of America with
the prestigious Service to Youth Award in 2001, commemorating 25 years of exemplary service; and

WHEREAS, David Hoch’s steadfast commitment to improving the lives of young people through
mentoring, leadership, and service has left an indelible mark on the communities of Depew and
Lancaster and will continue to inspire all those whose lives he has touched.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Erie County Legislature pauses in its deliberations to
honor and recognize David Hoch as the Erie County Legislature’s 8th District Citizen of the
Month and thank him for his lifelong dedication to our community and the Depew-Lancaster Boys &
Girls Club.

HON. FRANK J. TODARO
Erie County Legislator, District 8



Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT

TODARO

Honoring the Erie County Sheriff's Office for New York State
Sheriff's Week

24PROC. 16-13

Attachments




STATE OF NEW YORK
LEGISLATURE OF ERIE COUNTY

BUFFALO, N.Y., SEPTEMBER 26, 2024, A.D.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT at a regular session of the Legislature of Erie County held in Old County Hall,
in the City of Buffalo, on the 26" day of September 2024 A.D., a resolution was adopted, of which the
following is a true copy:

Honoring the Erie County Sheriff’s Office for
New York State Sheriff’s Week

WHEREAS, the Office of Sheriff was one of the original elected offices established under New York
State’s first Constitution in 1777 and has served as an integral part of the criminal justice system in New
York State and Erie County; and

WHEREAS, the Office of Sheriff has evolved into a modern, professional, full-service law enforcement
and corrections agency staffed by well-trained deputies and correctional officers, using state-of-the-art
technology and applying the latest and most advanced theories and practices in the fields of law
enforcement and corrections; and

WHEREAS, Sheriff’s Appreciation Week 2024 is recognized during the week of September 15 through
September 21 to celebrate the significant contributions made by the Sheriff’s Office to county government
and our community; and

WHEREAS, the first Sheriff of Erie County was appointed on February 7, 1821, then encompassing both
Erie and Niagara Counties and under the current leadership of the Honorable John. C. Garcia provides a
wide range of services covering over one-thousand square miles of land area and ninety miles of shoreline
along Lake Erie and the Niagara River; and

WHEREAS, the Erie County Sheriff’s Office first eamed accreditation from the New York State Sheriff’s
Association and, in 1990, became one of the first police agencies in Western New York to be certified by
New York State as an accredited Law Enforcement Agency; and

WHEREAS, the deputies, correctional officers, professional staff, and leadership of the Erie County
Sheriff’s Office work tirelessly, often in the face of significant challenges, to provide critical services such
as emergency response, court security, and the safekeeping of incarcerated individuals while serving with
distinction and upholding the highest standards of law enforcement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Erie County Legislature pauses in its deliberations to honor
the Erie County Sheriff’s Office in recognition of New York State Sheriff’s Week and extend our
gratitude to the brave men and women who serve as a cornerstone of justice in our community.

HON. FRANK J. TODARO
Erie County Legislator, District 8



Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT

LORIGO

Recognizing the East Aurora Fire Department During Fire
Prevention Week

24PROC. 16-14

Attachments




STATE OF NEW YORK
LEGISLATURE OF ERIE COUNTY
BUFFALO, NY SEPTEMBER 26, 2024 A.D.

1 HEREBY CERTIFY THAT at a regular session of the Legislature of Erie County held in Old County Hall, in the
City of Buffalo, on the 26" day of September 2024 A.D., a resolution was adopted, of which the following is a true

copy:

Recognizing the East Aurora Fire Department
During Fire Prevention Week

WHEREAS, “Fire Prevention Week” is recognized on the week of October 9 to highlight the need for
everyone to take proactive steps in preventing fires and protecting themselves, their families, their
homes; and

WHEREAS, Fire Prevention Week is observed to commemorate the tragedy of the Great Chicago Fire
of 1871, which burned through the heart of the city for more than twenty-four hours and took the lives
of three hundred people while destroying approximately 3.3 square miles of the city; and

WHEREAS, in 1925, President Calvin Coolidge proclaimed the first Fire Prevention Week as a national
observance, making it the longest-running public health recognition to date in the United States; and

WHEREAS, the East Aurora Fire Department has served the Village of East Aurora and the Town of
Aurora since 1870, consisting of fifty-three active and thirty auxiliary volunteer fire fighters and is
entirely volunteer-run; and

WHEREAS, the East Aurora Fire Department includes Cazenovia Hose, Chemical Engine, East End
Active Hose, and Pioneer Hook & Ladder fire companies, unified to operate under one department for
training and deployment to respond to about five hundred calls for assistance each year; and

WHEREAS, during Fire Prevention Week, individuals, families, businesses, and institutions are
encouraged to review and improve fire safety plans, ensure that fire prevention measures are followed,
and to educate themselves on the latest best practices in fire prevention.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Erie County Legislature pauses in its deliberations to honor
and recognize the volunteers of the East Aurora Fire Department during Fire Prevention Week for
their courage and dedication to protecting our community each day.

LINDSAY R. LORIGO
Erie County Legislator, District 10



Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT

LORIGO

Recognizing World Animal Day

24PROC. 16-15

Attachments




STATE OF NEW YORK
LEGISLATURE OF ERIE COUNTY
BUFFALO, NY SEPTEMBER 26, 2024 A.D.

1 HEREBY CERTIFY THAT at a regular session of the Legislature of Erie County held in Old County Hall, in the
City of Buffalo, on the 26" day of September 2024 A.D., a resolution was adopted, of which the following is a true

copy:

Recognizing World Animal Day

WHEREAS, “World Animal Day” is recognized on October 4™ each year as a global initiative to
improve animal welfare and celebrate the importance of protecting the diverse species on the planet; and

WHEREAS, the first World Animal Day was celebrated in 1925 by German cynologist Heinrich
Zimmermann, who organized the event on October 4™ to align with the feast day of Francis of Assisi,
the patron saint of animals; and

WHEREAS, in May 1931, at the International Animal Protection Congress in Florence, Italy,
Zimmermann’s proposal to declare October 4™ as World Animal Day was unanimously accepted and
adopted as a resolution; and

WHEREAS, protecting the well-being of animals is essential for the sustainability of our natural
environment and the overall health of our communities, with our shared responsibility being to promote
the humane treatment of all creatures and to safeguard endangered species from extinction; and

WHEREAS, Erie County is home to numerous animal shelters and rescue services, including the SPCA,
Buffalo Animal Shelter, Ten Lives Club, 716 Paws, and several more; and

WHEREAS, on World Animal Day, citizens are encouraged to recognize the value of animal life and
the impact our pets have on us, support conservation efforts and local shelters, and to show appreciation
for our furry friends.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Erie County Legislature pauses in its deliberations to
recognize World Animal Day and encourage residents to join in activities and initiatives that promote
the protection and well-being of animals across our world.

LINDSAY R. LORIGO
Erie County Legislator, District 10



Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT

LORIGO

Recognizing the Holland Central School District on World
Teachers' Day

24PROC. 16-16

Attachments




STATE OF NEW YORK

LEGISLATURE OF ERIE COUNTY
BUFFALO, N Y SEPTEMBER 26, 2024 A.D.

1 HEREBY CERTIFY THAT at a regular session of the Legislature of Erie County held in Old County Hall, in the
City of Buffalo, on the 26" day of September 2024 A.D., a resolution was adopted, of which the following is a true

copy:

Recognizing the Holland Central School District on
World Teachers’ Day

WHEREAS, “World Teachers’ Day” is globally recognized on October 5™ to honor the vital
contributions of educators worldwide and emphasize the important role that teachers play in their
student’s lives; and

WHEREAS, October 5% is the anniversary of the adoption of the 1966 ILO/UNESCO Recommendation
Regarding the Status of Teachers, which internationally recognizes the rights, principles, and
responsibilities of educators from pre-school to university level; and

WHEREAS, in 1994, the United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organization (UNESCO)
officially proclaimed October 5% as “World Teachers’ Day” to celebrate these educational standards
for teachers across the globe and promote their status in the interests of high-quality education; and

WHERFEAS, the Holland Central School District serves approximately 800 students across its schools,
with the Harold O. Brumsted Elementary, Holland Middle, and Holland High Schools providing the
children within the district an exceptional educational experience; and

WHEREAS, teachers are the foundation of our education system, instilling knowledge, fostering critical
thinking, and encouraging the development of essential life skills in students from all walks of life; and

WHEREAS, on World Teachers’ Day, we celebrate our teachers who not only impart academic
knowledge but also serve as role models, mentors, and advocates for their students, cultivating an
environment of inclusivity, creativity, and respect in the classroom and beyond.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Erie County Legislature pauses in its deliberations to
recognize the Holland Central School District educators on World Teachers’ Day for their passion
and commitment to help mold a brighter future for our community’s young learners.

LINDSAY R. LORIGO
Erie County Legislator, District 10



Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT

MILLS

Celebrating Sam and Annette Accordino on Their 40th
Wedding Anniversary

24PROC. 16-17

Attachments




STATE OF NEW YORK
LEGISLATURE OF ERIE COUNTY

BUFFALO, N.Y., SEPTEMBER 26, 2024, A.D.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT at a regular session of the Legislature of Erie County held in the Old
County Hall, in the City of Buffalo, on the26™ day of September 2024, a resolution was adopted, of
which the following is a true copy:

Celebrating Sam and Annette Accordino on their
40" Wedding Anniversary

WHEREAS, Sam and Annette Accordino, residing at 8719 Park Drive in Hamburg, New York,
will joyfully celebrate forty years of marriage on October 13, 2024, a remarkable milestone that
reflects their enduring love and dedication to each other; and

WHEREAS, their union has been blessed with three wonderful children, Casey, Nick, and Max, and
their commitment to family has been a source of inspiration, showing the true meaning of
partnership, strength, and mutual support; and

WHEREAS, Sam Accordino has a longstanding career in Buffalo radio and entertainment,
currently serving as Sales Manager for WECK 1230AM/102.9FM, and Annette Accordino is a
dedicated teacher at The Children’s League, and both have contributed significantly to the Western
New York Community through their professional and personal endeavors; and

WHEREAS, Sam and Annette have generously given back to the community through their
philanthropic efforts, particularly their unwavering support for Roswell Park Cancer Institute, by
raising funds at the Erie County Fair and participation in the Ride for Roswell, reflecting their deep
sense of compassion and community spirit; and

WHEREAS, the Erie County Legislature wishes to honor and congratulate Sam and Annette
Accordino on their 40th wedding anniversary, recognizing the impact of their lifelong partnership

and contributions to our region and wishing them continued happiness and success in the years
ahead.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOQLVED, the Erie County Legislature pauses in its deliberations to
celebrate Sam and Annette Accordino on this special occasion and thank them for their many
contributions to our community.

MINORITY LEADER JOHN J. MILLS
Erie County Legislator, 11" District



Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT

MILLS

Recognizing the Cutting Block on National Hair Day

24PROC. 16-18

Attachments




STATE OF NEW YORK
LEGISLATURE OF ERIE COUNTY
BUFFALO, N.Y., SEPTEMBER 26, 2024, A.D.

1 HEREBY CERTIFY THAT at a regular session of the Legislature of Erie County held in the Old
County Hall, in the City of Buffalo, on the 26th of September 2024 A.D., a resolution was adopted,
of which the following is a true copy:

Recognizing the Cutting Block on National Hair Day

WHEREAS, The Erie County Legislature seeks to honor individuals and institutions in Erie County
who enhance the quality of life in the community through their efforts by thinking big, taking risks,
and working hard; and

WHEREAS, Erie County supports our local businesses that create jobs, boost our local economy,
and contribute to the vibrancy of our neighborhoods; and

WHEREAS, on October 1st, we proudly celebrate National Hair Day, a day dedicated to
celebrating and appreciating all aspects of hair, from its various styles and textures to the importance
of hair care and self-expression; and

WHEREAS, National Hair Day is also an opportunity to highlight the artistry and skill of hair
professionals who enhance beauty, confidence, and personal expression; and

WHEREAS, The Cutting Block, located at 8606 S Main St in Eden, NY, has been a trusted name
in hair care since 1995, under the ownership of Diane Selt, offering exceptional services for women,
men, and children in a welcoming and comfortable environment; and

WHEREAS, The Cutting Block is more than just a full-service salon, fostering a sense of
community where clients not only receive excellent haircuts and styles but also enjoy the warm,
social atmosphere that turns strangers into friends; and

WHEREAS, Diane Selt and her team of licensed and passionate hairstylists provide functional,
easy-to-maintain, and beautiful hairstyles, consistently helping clients look and feel their best; and

WHEREAS, this National Hair Day, we commend The Cutting Block for its longstanding
commitment to quality service, creativity, and community spirit, as well as its vital role in Eden’s
beauty industry.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOQLVED, the Erie County Legislature pauses in its deliberations to
recognize and celebrate The Cutting Block on National Hair Day for its outstanding service and
contribution to the beauty industry.

R

JOHN J. MILLS, MINQRITY LEADER
Erie County Legislator — 11 District



Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT

MILLS

Recognizing the Park Salon on National Hair Day

24PROC. 16-19

Attachments




STATE OF NEW YORK

LEGISLATURE OF ERIE COUNTY
BUFFALO, N Y SEPTEMBER 26, 2024, A.D.

1 HEREBY CERTIFY THAT ar a regular session of the Legislature of Erie County held in the Old
County Hall, in the City of Buffalo, on the 26" of September 2024 A.D., a resolution was adopted,
of which the following is a true copy:

Recognizing the Park Salon on National Hair Day

WHEREAS, The Erie County Legislature seeks to honor individuals and institutions in Erie County
who enhance the quality of life in the community through their efforts by thinking big, taking risks,
and working hard; and

WHEREAS, Erie County supports our local businesses that create jobs, boost our local economy,
and contribute to the vibrancy of our neighborhoods, and we remain committed to providing
entrepreneurs and small business owners the support they need to thrive and grow; and

WHEREAS, on October lst, we proudly celebrate National Hair Day, a day dedicated to
celebrating and appreciating all aspects of hair, from its various styles and textures to the importance
of hair care and self-expression; and

WHEREAS, National Hair Day is also an opportunity to highlight the artistry and skill of hair
professionals who enhance beauty, confidence, and personal expression; and

WHEREAS, The Park Salon, a cornerstone of Orchard Park since 2008, has provided exceptional
services under the expert leadership of Maria Weber, specializing in modern hair cutting, color, and
styling techniques for women, men, and children; and

WHEREAS, The Park Salon continues to be a place of warmth and professionalism, offering its
clients not only exceptional hair care but also a welcoming atmosphere; and

WHEREAS, this National Hair Day, we commend The Park Salon for its dedication to the
Orchard Park community and its ongoing commitment to quality, creativity, and customer
satisfaction.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVYED, the Erie County Legislature pauses in its deliberations to
recognize and celebrate The Park Salon on National Hair Day for its outstanding service and
contribution to the beauty industry.

JOHN J. MILLS, MINORITY LEADER
Erie County Legislator — 11" District



Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT

DUPRE & BASKIN

Honoring National Hispanic Heritage Month

24PROC. 16-20

Attachments




STATE OF NEW YORK

LEGISLATURE OF ERIE COUNTY
BUFFALQ, NY, SEPTEMBER 15 - OCTOBER 15, 2024

Honoring National Hispanic Heritage Month

WHEREAS, celebrating an appreciation of our community’s cultural diversity and ethnic
heritage highlights the contributions of our diverse nation builds bridges across cultural lines,
and strengthens our community as we leam of the many achievements of all our people; and

WHEREAS, such cultural diversity has strengthened America, and our nation is much
stronger when we celebrate our distinct heritage and teach our children of the many contributions
and rich history of our fellow Americans; and

WHEREAS, the inspirational origination of Hispanic Heritage Month nationally was set
in 1968 when the Congress authorized President Lyndon Johnson to set aside a week to celebrate
the many contributions of Hispanic Americans, and was expanded in 1988 when a joint
resolution of Congress authorized President Ronald Reagan to proclaim the event a month-long
celebration; and

WHEREAS, Hispanic Heritage Month is a time that Hispanic communities around the
country come together to celebrate all that "is" the community - historically speaking and in
present day; and

WHEREAS, September 15% was chosen as the starting point for the celebration because
it is the anniversary of independence of five Latin American countries: Costa Rica, El Salvador,
Guatemala, Honduras and Nicaragua; and

WHEREAS, as we celebrate Hispanic Heritage Month in the United States, from
September 15™ through October 15, we recognize the achievements and contributions of the
Hispanic community here in Western New York, across the nation, and throughout the world;
and

WHEREAS, Hispanic Heritage Month is an excellent opportunity for people of all
cultural backgrounds to learn more about, and show an appreciation for, Hispanic Americans
thru numerous local events, ceremonies and workshops; and

WHEREAS, The Hispanic Heritage Council of WNY Inc. is a nonprofit organization that
exists to foster and inspire awareness, understanding, and appreciation of past, present, and
future contributions of the Hispanic Community in Western New Y ork; and



WHEREAS, The Hispanic Heritage Council has and continues to focus their priorities to
preserve the history of Hispanics in Western New York for future generations, promote peace,
respect, and appreciation within the Hispanic Community, promote peace, respect, and
appreciation of Hispanic culture in the larger WNY community and educate; and

WHEREAS, some events that were held in the past in honor of Hispanic Heritage Month
include: The Science of Puerto Rican Cooking demonstration at Buffalo Museum of Science, the
Buffalo Philharmonic Orchestra Hispanic Heritage Month Concert Series at local churches, the
Albright-Knox Art Gallery First Friday Celebrates Hispanic Heritage Month: WNY Latinx
Talents at the gallery, the Honoring Our Veterans: The Legacy of Hispanic Men & Women in
the Military event at the Buffalo & Erie County Naval and Military Park, Hispanic Heritage Day
at Burchfield Penney Art Center, the Hispanic Heritage Council of WNY Presents Salsa for a
Cure at the Pucho Olivencia Social Club, Vaya a Jugar! A Day for Our Children at Explore &
More Ralph C. Wilson, Jr. Children’s Museum and Hispanic Heritage Day at the Buffalo & Erie
County Botanical Gardens.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT

RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature does hereby wholeheartedly recognize and
celebrate Hispanic Heritage Month in Western New York, and appreciates the contributions and
opportunity for educational and cultural harmony that this wonderful event brings to our
community; and be it further

RESQLVED, that this Legislature encourages people to attend and participate in this
celebration of Hispanic culture, and to utilize this fantastic event as an opportunity to educate
their children of the rich history, numerous contributions and pride that is our Hispanic
community.

Hon. Lawrence J. Dupre Hon. April N.M Baskin
Erie County Legislator, I* District Erie County Legislator, 2" District



Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT

MAJORITY CAUCUS

Acknowledging and Honoring National Voter Registration
Day

24PROC. 16-21

Attachments




STATE OF NEW YORK

LEGISLATURE OF ERIE COUNTY
BUFFALO, NY, SEPTEMBER 16, 2024

Acknowledging and Honoring National Voter Registration Day

WHEREAS, during the month of September annually, one day is designated to
acknowledge National Voter Registration Day; and

WHERERAS, voter registration is the first step someone will take in their journey toward
becoming more civically involved; and

WHEREAS, each year, National Voter Registration Day reminds us of our right and our
responsibility, as individual citizens and as one Nation, to exercise the sacred right to vote and
ensure that our voices are heard; and

WHEREAS, voting provides Americans with a voice in building the country we want to
live in together and the country we hope to leave to our children and grandchildren; and

WHEREAS, volunteers from various organizations work together to set up registration
tables, knock on doors, and create social media and mass media awareness campaigns about the
importance of voting; and

WHEREAS, moving forward, we must ensure that older Americans have the appropriate
resources to maintain their independence and stay connected to their communities; and

WHEREAS, this Honorable Body will acknowledge National Voter Registration Day as a
day we should be able to appreciate a time for Americans to celebrate their core democratic values
of voting.

NOW, THEREFQRE, BE IT

RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature hereby acknowledge National Voter
Registration Day and sends much love and support to all programs and celebrate their
achievements and recommit to make our best efforts to register thousands of Americans who have
the potential to make a difference at their local polling place.



Hon. April N.M. Baskin
Chair of the Legislature
Erie County Legislator, 2" District

Hon. Lawrence J. Dupre
Erie County Legislator, I*' District

Hon. John A. Bargnesi Jr.
Erie County Legislator, 4" District

Hon. Timothy J. Meyers
Majority Leader
Erie County Legislator, 7" District

Hon. Michael H. Kooshoian
Erie County Legislator, 3™ District

Hon. Jeanne M. Vinal
Erie County Legislator, 5" District

Hon. John J. Gilmour
Erie County Legislator, 9" District



Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT

MAJORITY CAUCUS

Acknowledging and Recognizing National Childhood Cancer
Month in September

24PROC. 16-22

Attachments




STATE OF NEW YORK

LEGISLATURE OF ERIE COUNTY
BUFFALO, NY, SEPTEMBER 12, 2024

Acknowledging and Recognizing
National Childhood Cancer Month in September

WHEREAS, September is globally recognized as National Childhood Cancer Awareness
Month, a special time to celebrate the courage of children all over the world who battle this disease
every day; and

WHEREAS, even during the pandemic, childhood cancer remains the number one cause of
death by disease for children in the U.S. and around the world; and

WHEREAS, during National Childhood Cancer Awareness Month, we recognize the
courage and strength of the brave children battling a cancer diagnosis, and we remain committed
to combat pediatric cancers, support these children and their families and friends in their fight; and

WHEREAS, during National Childhood Cancer Awareness Month, we honor the memory
of the precious children and adolescents lost to cancer, and we pray for their families and friends
as they remember their loved ones; and

WHEREAS, researchers and healthcare professionals work diligently dedicating their
expertise to treat and cure children with cancer, and

WHEREAS, more than ever, we recommit to providing help, compassion, and
encouragement to those children who are in the midst of a difficult battle; and

WHEREAS, this honorable body appreciates and extend our support to young people
fighting for that opportunity to live life to the fullest and recognize all who commit themselves to
advancing the journey toward a cancer-free world in honor of National Childhood Cancer
Awareness Month.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT

RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature does hereby recognize and encourage all
Americans to observe Childhood Cancer Awareness Month and support this cause that so deeply
impacts families in every community across our country.



Hon. April N.M. Baskin
Chair of the Legislature
Erie County Legislator, 2" District

Hon. Lawrence J. Dupre
Erie County Legislator, I*' District

Hon. John A. Bargnesi Jr.
Erie County Legislator, 4" District

Hon. Timothy J. Meyers
Majority Leader
Erie County Legislator, 7* District

Hon. Michael H. Kooshoian
Erie County Legislator, 3 District

Hon. Jeanne M. Vinal
Erie County Legislator, 5" District

Hon. John J. Gilmour
Erie County Legislator, 9" District



Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT

LL INTRO. 2-1
(2024) LORIGO

The Tax Dollar Disclosure Act

LL INTRO. 2-1 (2024)

Attachments




LOCAL LAW TO BE ENACTED BY
THE ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE

IN THE
COUNTY OF ERIE
LOCAL LAW INTRO. - NO. __2-1 - 2024
LOCAL LAW —NO. - 2024

A LOCAL LAW requiring transparent, searchable databases for expenditures accessible
and available to the public.

SECTION 1. Title
This law shall be entitled and known as “The Tax Dollar Disclosure Act.”
SECTION 2. Legislative Intent

The Erie County Legislature recognizes that taxpayers should have easy access to details on how
the county is spending their tax dollars and what performance results are achieved for those
expenditures. It is the intent of the Legislature, therefore, to direct the Erie County Comptroller
to create and maintain a searchable budget database website detailing where, for what purpose,
and what results are achieved for all taxpayer investments in county government.

SECTION 3. Definitions

AGENCY
A county department, division, office, bureau, board, commission, committee, or unit.
This includes individual county agencies and programs, as well as those programs and
activities that cross agency lines. “County agency” includes all elective offices in Erie
County government.

AUDIT OR REPORT
Shall include any audit or report issued by the state, county, legislature, legislative
committee, comptroller or executive body relating to the entity or recipient of funds or
the budget program/activity or agency.

COMPTROLLER
The Erie County Comptroller.

ENTITY/AND OR RECIPIENTS
A. acorporation,

B. an association,

LL INTRO. 2-1
4/30/2024
Page 1 of 4



C. aunion,
D. alimited liability company,

E. alimited liability partnership,

F. any other legal business entity including non-profits,
G. grantees,

H. contractors, and

I. a county, city, or other local government entity.

J.  “Entity/and or recipients” does not include an individual recipient of public
assistance.

FUNDING SOURCE
The account from which the expenditure is appropriated, inclusive of all budgeted accounts.

FUNDING ACTION OR EXPENDITURE
Shall include details on the type of spending (grant, contract, appropriations, etc.). This
includes tax exemptions or credits. Where possible, a hyperlink to the actual expenditure
document (in a format that is, at a minimum, as searchable as a searchable PDF format) shall
be provided.

LEGISLATURE
The Erie County Legislature.

SEARCHABLE BUDGET DATABASE WEBSITE
A website that allows the public, at no cost, to:

A. Search and aggregate information for the following:

1. the name and principal location or residence of the entity/and or recipients
of funds,
2. the amount of funds expended,

3. the funding or expending agency,
4. the funding source of the revenue expended,
5. the budget program/activity of the expenditure,
LLINTRO. 2-1

4/30/2024
Page 2 of 4



6. a descriptive purpose for the funding action or expenditure,

7. the expected performance outcome for the funding action or expenditure,
8. the past performance outcomes achieved for the funding action or
expenditure,

9. any audit or report relating to the entity or recipient of funds or the budget

program/activity or agency,
10. and any other relevant information specified by the Comptroller.

B. Programmatically search and access all data in a serialized machine-readable
format (such as XML) via a web-services application programming interface.

SECTION 4. Searchable Budget Database Website Created

By October 1, 2024, the Comptroller shall develop and make publicly available a single,
searchable budget database website including the required data for the most recent county
budget. The website shall be given a unique and simplified website address. Each county agency
that maintains a generally accessible Internet site or for which a generally accessible Internet site
is maintained shall include a link on the front page of the agency’s Internet site to the budget
database website.

SECTION 5. Updates

The Comptroller shall provide guidance to agency heads to ensure compliance with this section.
The searchable budget database website shall be updated as new data becomes available, if
feasible, but no later than 30 days upon receipt of data from the agency.

The Comptroller shall ensure that all data added to the searchable budget database website
remains accessible to the public for a minimum of six years.

SECTION 6. Compliance with the Act

The Comptroller shall not be considered in compliance with this act if the data required for the
searchable budget database website is not available in a searchable and aggregate manner and/or
the public is redirected to other government websites, unless each of those sites has information
from all agencies and each category of information required can be searched electronically by
field in a single search.

SECTION 7. Severability

If any part or provision of this chapter or the application thereof to any person or circumstance
be adjudged invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, such judgment shall be confined in

LL INTRO. 2-1
4/30/2024
Page 3 of 4



its operation to the part or provision or application directly involved in the controversy in which
such judgment shall have been rendered and shall not affect or impair the validity of the
remainder of this chapter or the application thereof to other persons or circumstances. The
County of Erie hereby declares that it would have passed this chapter or the remainder thereof
had such invalid application or invalid provision been apparent.

SECTION 8. Repealer

All ordinances, local laws, and parts thereof inconsistent with this chapter are hereby repealed;
provided, however, that such repeal shall not affect or impair any act done or right accruing,
accrued, or acquired, or penalty, charge, liability, forfeiture, or punishment incurred or owing
prior to the time such repeal takes effect, but the same may be enjoyed, asserted, collected,
enforced, prosecuted, or inflicted as fully and to the same extent as if such repeal had not been
effected. All actions and proceedings, civil or criminal, commenced under or by virtue of any
provision of any County of Erie local law, ordinance or resolution so repealed, and pending
immediately prior to the taking effect of such repeal, may be prosecuted and defended to final
effect in the same manner as they might if such provisions were not so repealed.

SECTION 9. Effective Date
This Local Law shall take effect on October 1, 2024.

Sponsor: Legislator Lorigo

Co-Sponsors:

LL INTRO. 2-1
4/30/2024
Page 4 of 4



Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT

LL INTRO. 3-1
(2024) LORIGO

The Meetings Transparency Act

LL INTRO. 3-1 (2024)

Attachments




LOCAL LAW TO BE ENACTED BY
THE ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE

IN THE
COUNTY OF ERIE
LOCAL LAW INTRO.-NO. 31 _ 2024
LOCAL LAW — NO. - 2024

A LOCAL LAW requiring meetings of Erie County Boards and Advisory Committees to
provide access to information to the public.

SECTION 1. Title
This law shall be entitled and known as “The Meetings Transparency Act.”
SECTION 2. Legislative Intent

The Erie County Legislature recognizes that taxpayers should have easy access to details
discussed and acted upon at public meetings. The Erie County Legislature prepares an agenda
which it posts prior to session, streams and has available for replay video of the meeting and
posts the minutes of meeting for review. Readily available technology should be used to
increase access to similar discussions and actions of commissions and boards.

SECTION 3. Definitions

BOARD
Any government board, commission, council, committee, advisory committee, panel or
similar group that is created pursuant to the Erie County Charter, Code or Local Law.

SECTION 4. Meeting Minutes

Boards shall keep written minutes summarizing all official actions, discussions, public
comments, and votes taken at each meeting.

Draft minutes shall be made available to the public within 10 business days after each meeting.

Minutes shall be officially approved at the board's next public meeting and a final version posted
publicly online within 5 business days after approval. The minutes also must be submitted to the
Clerk of the Legislature to be included in the official record.

LL INTRO. 3-1
5/7/2024
Page 1 of 3



SECTION 5. Notice and Agendas

Boards shall give public notice at least 7 calendar days prior to any regular meeting by
prominently posting the date, time, location, and agenda on the general Erie County website, as
well as the website of the Erie County Legislature.

For special or emergency meetings, notice should be provided as soon as is practicable.

Meeting agendas shall include a list of topics to be discussed, a list of invited speakers, and
indicate if any votes or official actions are anticipated.

SECTION 6. Broadcast and Recording of Meetings

To the extent feasible, boards should also provide a live stream of meetings for public viewing.
Erie County is required to make appropriate accommodation for each board to make this
possible. If a live stream is not possible, meetings should at minimum be video recorded and the
recording should be posted on the general Erie County website.

SECTION 7. Public Access to Records

Boards shall maintain information to be posted on Erie County’s website providing access to
board member information, past meeting minutes, agendas, recordings, reports, resolutions, and
other official documents.

Upon public request, boards shall provide copies or electronic access to such records in a timely
manner as allowable by public records laws.

SECTION 8. Public Comment
Boards should provide reasonable opportunities for public comment at each meeting,.

Any restrictions on public comment shall be viewpoint-neutral and clearly stated in the board's
policies.

SECTION 9. Compliance

Originating governmental bodies shall establish procedures to monitor and ensure compliance
with this law.

LL INTRO. 3-1
5/7/2024
Page 2 of 3



SECTION 10. Severability

If any part or provision of this chapter or the application thereof to any person or circumstance
be adjudged invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, such judgment shall be confined in
its operation to the part or provision or application directly involved in the controversy in which
such judgment shall have been rendered and shall not affect or impair the validity of the
remainder of this chapter or the application thereof to other persons or circumstances. The
County of Erie hereby declares that it would have passed this chapter or the remainder thereof
had such invalid application or invalid provision been apparent.

SECTION 11. Effective Date
This Local Law shall take effect on September 1, 2024.

Sponsor: Legislator Lorigo

Co-Sponsors:

LL INTRO. 3-1
5/7/2024
Page 3 of 3



Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT

élazII:)TRO. 5-1 BARGNESI Amending the Erie County Charter in Relation

to Term Lengths and Term Limits

Attachments

LL INTRO. 5-1 (2024)




FrOTi gy

O LT -

COUNTY OF ERIE
LOCAL LAW INTRO. NO. -2024
LOCAL LAW NO. -2024

A Local Law amending Local Law 1-1959, constituting the Erie County Charter, as amended, in
relation to the amending of Section 202.2 for the purpose of setting the terms of legislative office
to four (4) years and limiting the number of consecutive terms for that can be held to three (3)
consecutive four-year terms for all elected officials.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE AS FOLLOWS:
Section 1. LEGISLATIVE INTENT

The intent of this legislation is to amend the terms of office for the Erie County of Legislature to
a term of four (4) years and to limit the number of consecutive terms for all elected officials that
can be served to three (3) consecutive four-year terms.

Section 2. CHANGING THE TERM OF LEGISLATIVE OFFICE AND LIMITING
THE NUMBER OF CONSECUTIVE TERMS FOR ALL ELECTED
OFFICIALS

Erie County Local Law number one of nineteen hundred fifty-nine, as amended, constituting the
Erie County Charter, is hereby amended as follows:

Article 2, Section 202.2. Election and terms of office. County legislators shall first be
elected at the general election in the year nineteen hundred sixty-seven and shall assume
office on January first, nineteen hundred sixty-eight. All elected County legislators shall
hold their respective offices for a term of two years; provided, that legislators elected in
the year two thousand twenty-six and in subsequent years shall hold their offices for four
years. No person shall be eligible to be elected to or serve as County legislator if that
person had previously held such office for three or more consecutive four-year terms.

Article 3, Section 301. The County Executive; election; term; qualifications. The
executive branch of County government shall be administered by the County Executive
who shall be elected from the County at large. His or her term of office shall begin with
the first day of January next following his or her election and shall be for four years,
except that the term of the County Executive elected in nineteen hundred sixty shall be
for three years. No person shall be eligible to be elected to or serve as County Executive
if that person had previously held such office for three or more consecutive four-year
terms. At the time of his or her election and throughout his or her term of office he or she
shall be a qualified elector of the County. He or she shall devote his or her whole time to
the duties of his or her office and shall hold no other public office, except as provided in
section three hundred seven hereof.

Q3

K

o
-

r:';u

[y |
]



Article 18, Section 1801. Election; Comptroller's Act repealed. There shall be a County
Comptroller who shall be elected from the County at large. His or her term of office shall
begin with the first day of January next following his or her election and shall be for four
years. No person shall be eligible to be elected to or serve as County Comptroller if that
person had previously held such office for three or more consecutive four-year terms. At
the time of his or her election and throughout his or her term of office he or she shall be a
qualified elector of the County. He or she shall devote his or her whole time to the duties
of his or her office and shall hold no other public office. The Erie County Comptroller's
Act, being chapter four hundred twenty three of the laws of nineteen hundred thirty-nine
as amended, is hereby repealed, as of January first, nineteen hundred sixty-one.

Article 19, Section 1901. Election. There shall be a County Clerk who shall be elected
from the County at large. His or her term of office shall begin with the first day of
January next following his or her election, and shall be for four years except as otherwise
provided in this Charter. No person shall be eligible to be elected to or serve as County
Clerk if that person had previously held such office for three or more consecutive four-
year terms. At the time of his or her election and throughout his or her term of office he
or she shall be a qualified elector of the County. He or she shall devote his or her whole
time to the duties of his or her office and shall hold no other public office.

Article 20, Section 2001. Election. There shall be a District Attorney who shall be elected
from the County at large. His or her term of office shall begin with the first day of
January next following his or her election, and shall be for four years except as otherwise
provided in this Charter. No person shall be eligible to be elected to or serve as District
Attorney if that person had previously held such office for three or more consecutive
four-year terms. At the time of his or her election and throughout his or her term of office
he or she shall be a qualified elector of the County. He or she shall devote his or her
whole time to the duties of his or her office and shall hold no other public office.

Article 21, Section 2101. Election. There shall be a Sheriff who shall be elected from the
County at large. His or her term of office shall begin with the first day of January next
following his or her election and shall be for four years except as otherwise provided in
this Charter. No person shall be eligible to be elected to or serve as Sheriff if that person
had previously held such office for three or more consecutive four-year terms. At the
time of his or her election and throughout his or her term of office he or she shall be a
qualified elector of the County. He or she shall devote his or her whole time to the duties
of his or her office and shall hold no other public office.

Section 3. EFFECTIVE DATE

This Local Law shall take effect the first day of the first fiscal year after receiving an affirmative
vote of a majority of the qualified electors of the County of Erie in a manner consistent with the
provisions of New York State Municipal Home Rule Law Section 3 and upon its subsequent
filing with the New York Secretary of State.



Section 4. SEVERABILITY

If any clause, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, section or part of this Local Law or the
application thereof, to any person, individual, corporation, firm, partnership, entity or
circumstance, shall be adjudged by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or
unconstitutional such order of judgment shall not affect, impair, or invalidate the remainder
thereof, but shall be confined in its operation to the clause, sentence, paragraph, subdivision,
section or part of this Local Law or in its application to the person, individual, corporation, firm,
partnership, entity, or circumstance directly involved in the controversy in which such judgment
or order shall be rendered.

Sponsor:

John J. Bargnesi



Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT

LL INTRO. 5-2
(2024) BARGNESI

Amending the Erie County Charter in Relation
to Term Lengths and Term Limits

LL INTRO. 5-2 (2024)

Attachments




e, il fmgeid o, L% T

COUNTY OF ERIE
LOCAL LAW INTRO. NO.5-2-2024
LOCAL LAW NO. 2024

A Local Law amending Local Law 1-1959, constituting the Erie County Charter, as amended, in
relation to the amending of Section 202.2 for the purpose of setting the terms of legislative office
to four (4) years and limiting the number of terms for that can be held to three (3) four-year
terms for all elected officials.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE AS FOLLOWS:
Section 1. LEGISLATIVE INTENT

The intent of this legislation is to amend the terms of office for the Erie County of Legislature to
a term of four (4) years and to limit the number of terms for all elected officials that
can be served to three (3) four-year terms.

Section 2. CHANGING THE TERM OF LEGISLATIVE OFFICE AND LIMITING
THE NUMBER OF TERMS FOR ALL ELECTED OFFICIALS

Erie County Local Law number one of nineteen hundred fifty-nine, as amended, constituting the
Erie County Charter, is hereby amended as follows: '

Article 2, Section 202.2. Election and terms of office. County legislators shall first be
elected at the general election in the year nineteen hundred sixty-seven and shall assume
office on January first, nineteen hundred sixty-eight. All elected County legislators shall
hold their respective offices for a term of two years: provided. that legislators elected in
the year two thousand twenty-six and in subsequent years shall hold their offices for four
vears. No person shall be eligible to be elected to or serve as County legislator if that
person had previously held such office for three or more four-year terms. For the purpose

of establishing the term limit. term of office shall be calculated beginning the first day of
his or her first full term of office after the effective date hereof.

Article 3, Section 301. The County Executive; election; term; qualifications. The
executive branch of County government shall be administered by the County Executive
who shall be elected from the County at large. His or her term of office shall begin with
the first day of January next following his or her election and shall be for four years,
except that the term of the County Executive elected in nineteen hundred sixty shall be

for three years. No person shall be eligible to be elected to or serve as County Executive
if that person had previously held such office for three or more four-year terms. For the

purpose of establishing the term limit. term of office shall be calculated beginning the
first day of his or her first full term of office after the effective date hereof. At the time of

his or her election and throughout his or her term of office he or she shall be a qualified
elector of the County. He or she shall devote his or her whole time to the duties of his or




her office and shall hold no other public office, except as provided in section three
hundred seven hereof.

Article 18, Section 1801. Election; Comptroller's Act repealed. There shall be a County
Comptroller who shall be elected from the County at large. His or her term of office shall
begin with the first day of January next following his or her election and shall be for four
years. No person shall be eligible to be elected to or serve as County Comptroller if that
person had previously held such office for three or more four-year terms. For the purpose
of establishing the term limit, term of office shall be calculated beginning the first day of
his or her first full term of office after the effective date hereof. At the time of his or her
election and throughout his or her term of office he or she shall be a qualified elector of
the County. He or she shall devote his or her whole time to the duties of his or her office
and shall hold no other public office. The Erie County Comptroller's Act, being chapter
four hundred twenty three of the laws of nineteen hundred thirty-nine as amended, is
hereby repealed, as of January first, nineteen hundred sixty-one.

Article 19, Section 1901. Election. There shall be a County Clerk who shall be elected
from the County at large. His or her term of office shall begin with the first day of
January next following his or her election, and shall be for four years except as otherwise
provided in this Charter. No person shall be eligible to be elected to or serve as County
Clerk if that person had previously held such office for three or more four-year terms. For
the purpose of establishing the term limit. term of office shall be calculated beginning the
first dav of his or her first full term of office after the effective date hereof . At the time
of his or her election and throughout his or her term of office he or she shall be a
qualified elector of the County. He or she shall devote his or her whole time to the duties
of his or her office and shall hold no other public office.

Article 20, Section 2001. Election. There shall be a District Attorney who shall be elected
from the County at large. His or her term of office shall begin with the first day of
January next following his or her election, and shall be for four years except as otherwise
provided in this Charter. No person shall be eligible to be elected to or serve as District
Attorney if that person had previously held such office for three or more four-year terms.
For the purpose of establishing the term limit. term of office shall be calculated beginning
the first day of his or her first full term of office after the effective date hereof. At the
time of his or her election and throughout his or her term of office he or she shall be a
qualified elector of the County. He or she shall devote his or her whole time to the duties
of his or her office and shall hold no other public office.

Article 21, Section 2101. Election. There shall be a Sheriff who shall be elected from the
County at large. His or her term of office shall begin with the first day of January next
following his or her election and shall be for four years except as otherwise provided in
this Charter. No person shall be eligible to be elected to or serve as Sheriff if that person
had previously held such office for three or more four-year terms. For the purpose of
establishine the term limit. term of office shall be calculated beginning the first day of his
or her first full term of office after the effective date hereof. At the time of his or her
election and throughout his or her term of office he or she shall be a qualified elector of




the County. He or she shall devote his or her whole time to the duties of his or her office
and shall hold no other public office.

Section 3. EFFECTIVE DATE

This Local Law shall take effect the first day of the first fiscal year after receiving an affirmative
vote of a majority of the qualified electors of the County of Erie in a manner consistent with the
provisions of New York State Municipal Home Rule Law Article 3 and upon its subsequent
filing with the New York Secretary of State.

Section 4. SEVERABILITY

If any clause, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, section or part of this Local Law or the
application thereof, to any person, individual, corporation, firm, partnership, entity or
circumstance, shall be adjudged by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or
unconstitutional such order of judgment shall not affect, impair, or invalidate the remainder
thereof, but shall be confined in its operation to the clause, sentence, paragraph, subdivision,
section or part of this Local Law or in its application to the person, individual, corporation, firm,
partnership, entity, or circumstance directly involved in the controversy in which such judgment
or order shall be rendered.

Sponsor:

John J. Bargnesi



Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT

LL INTRO. 6-1

(2024) BASKIN & MEYERS The Erie County Language Access Act

Attachments
LL INTRO. 6-1 (2024)




P N it )

e r P e

COUNTY OF ERIE

LOCAL LAW INTRO. NO. 6-1 .2024

LOCAL LAW NO. -2024
THE ERIE COUNTY LANGUAGE ACCESS ACT

A Local Law mandating the development of County Agency-specific language access plans,
practices and training in the County of Erie.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the County of Erie as follows:
Section 1. Legislative Intent and Findings

The County recognizes that a large percentage of its inhabitants speak languages other than English
and that the well-being and safety of the County as a whole is put in jeopardy if the people of the
County are unable to access County services or effectively communicate with County agencies.

This Legislature also finds and determines that language can be a substantial barrier for residents
seeking to access government information, programs and services. This Legislature finds that Title
VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 prohibits agencies receiving federal funds from discriminating
against persons on the basis of race, color or national origin. This Legislature determines that
Presidential Executive Order 13166 (August 11, 2000) requires federally funded agencies to act to
ensure that individuals with limited English proficiency have access to programs and services.

This Legislature concludes that it is in the best interest of all County residents to ensure and
improve language access to County programs and services.

Section 2. Definitions
As used in this law, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated:

A. County Agency: Any agency, department, division or office of Erie County government
which provides programs and/or services to the public or programs and/or services made
available to individuals in the custody of the Erie County Sheriff.

B. Designated Countywide Languages: The top six limited English proficiency languages
spoken by the population of Erie County as determined by the Language Access
Advisory Board for the purpose of translation for a Locally Covered Entity.

LL INTRO. 6-1
9/12/2024
Page 1 of 9

s i

TR A,
Ao A iE

A s

4

En
Xz

1)

=0
a2



C. Direct Public Services: Services administered by a County Agency directly to program
beneficiaries and/or participants, including any services administered by an agency
directly to individuals in the custody of the Erie County Sheriff.

D. Head of a County Agency: The highest-ranking public officer in the County Agency with
administrative authority over the provision of programs and/or services, or their designee.

E. Interpretation: An oral (spoken) or signed communication of a message from one
language to another, in real time by a qualified human interpreter competent in both
languages, keeping in mind cultural context, without adding, omitting, or changing the
message's original meaning.

F. Language Access Services: The service of interpretation, translation, or other
communication method to a person with Limited English Proficiency.

G. Limited English Proficiency: Persons for whom English is not their primary language and
have difficulty communicating effectively in English.

H. Locally Covered Entity: A County Agency, as defined in this section, in which the Head
of the County Agency has declared that the agency is not covered by State or Federal
language access requirements.

L. State or Federally Covered Entity: A County Agency, as defined in this section, that is
subject to State or Federal language access requirements because it is a recipient of State
or Federal funds either directly or as a passthrough; or, it is subject to State or Federal
laws that requires the provision of language access.

J. Translation: The written rendition of a text in one language to a written text in another
language, completed by a human translator competent in both languages.

K. Unforeseeable Life-Threatening Emergency: An emergency that threatens the life of a
client, which is not commonly included in the scope of the County Agency’s normal
provision of Direct Public Services.

L. Vital Documents: Those documents most commonly distributed to the public and
individuals that contain or elicit important and necessary information regarding the
provision of Direct Public Services, as determined by the Head of the County Agency.

Section 3. Applicability

A. For the purpose of this Local Law the Head of each County Agency shall declare if their
agency is either a State or Federally Covered Entity or a Locally Covered Entity.

LL INTRO. 6-1
9/12/2024
Page 2 of 9



B. County Agencies that are declared to be a State or Federally Covered Entity shall not be
subject to Section 5 of this act.

C. County Agencies that are declared to be a Locally Covered Entity shall be subject to the
requirements all sections of this Local Law.

D. All requirements applicable to Locally Covered Entity under Section 5 of this act shall
also be applicable to any contractor hired to perform Direct Public Services in the place
of the County Agency.

Section 4. Compliance Documentation and Reporting

A. Each County Agency shall be responsible for the creation and maintenance of compliance
documentation as set forth in this Section, including:

1. A written declaration by the Head of each County Agency shall be made to the
Language Access Advisory Board by the last day in November for the next fiscal
year. This written declaration shall include:

a. All direct public services covered by the declaration.

b. The applicability declaration category selected by the Head of the County
Agency from Section 2(A) above.

c. A brief explanation of the laws and regulations that are applicable to the
County Agency.

d. Specific Dates of the biennial review cycle to be used by the County
Agency.

2. A written Annual Report on Language Access shall be made to the Language
Access Advisory Board by the last day in January each year providing data on the
year prior. This Annual Report shall include:

a. Data on the types of services provided and the language in which they
were provided, including geographic and demographic data if available.

b. Estimates of the number of individuals served for each language.

3. A written Language Access Plan shall be submitted to the Language Access
Advisory Board by the last day in November each year. This written plan shall
include at minimum:

LL INTRO. 6-1
9/12/2024
Page 3 of 9



a. A needs assessment considering the following factors:

i.  the number or proportion of LEP persons in the eligible service
population;

ii.  the frequency with which LEP individuals come into contact with
the agency, if such data exists. If no relevant data has been
collected, such agency must exclude this factor from consideration;

iii.  the importance of the benefit, service, information, or encounter to
the LEP person (including the consequences of lack of language
services or inadequate interpretation or translation); and

iv.  the resources available to the agency and the costs of providing
various types of language services.

v.  The languages commonly encountered and served by the County
Agency.

b. The designation of a language access coordinator by name, title, and
contact information;

c. A list of language access services and resources, communications aids and
accommodations for the disabled provided by the County Agency and a
brief description of how they are provided;

d. A description of the uniform training plan for agency employees,
including annual training on the language access policies and the provision
of language assistance services as well as providing a procedure that
allows employees to report issues and problems implementing the
language access plan;

e. A description of the process for tracking and reporting agency language
access data including the number and type of requests for language access
services, what languages service requests are for, how each request was
fulfilled, the number of complaints received by the agency regarding
language access, and how complaints were resolved.

B. Each County Agency shall conduct reviews of their Language Access Plans on a biennial
basis as set by the Head of the County Agency.

C. Each County Agency shall publish in a prominent place on the County’s website:

LL INTRO. 6-1
9/12/2024
Page 4 of 9



1. The Language Access Plan of the county agency.
2. The name, title and contact information of the language access coordinator.

3. Translated notices in multiple languages informing the public that language
access services are available free of charge, where programmatically applicable.

D. Any additional documentation required by future resolutions of the Erie County

Legislature, unless barred by laws restricting the disclosure of that information.

Section 5. Language Access Requirements for a State or Federally Covered Entity

A. Each County Agency that declares itself a State or Federally Covered Entity under

Section 3 above shall follow the applicable requirements and standards set forth in State
and Federal Law

. A County Agency that declares itself a State or Federally Covered Entity under Section 3
above and complies with the requirements of Section 4 by submitting a written
declaration, language access plan, and annual report, shall not be subject to Section 6 of
this act.

1. Inits written declaration under Section 4(A)(1)(b), the County Agency should
reference the State or Federal Law that covers the County Agency’s language
access requirements.

. 365 days after this law is filed with the Secretary of State, a State or Federally Covered
Entity under this act shall be required to meet a minimum service standard of providing
competent and timely interpretation services to individuals in their primary or preferred
language. Competent interpretation shall mean a spoken or signed, real-time
communication in which the qualified human interpreter is fluent in both the source and
target language and is trained as an interpreter. The interpreter shall know relevant
terminology and provide accurate interpretations by choosing equivalent expressions that
convey the best matching and meaning to the source language and capture, to the greatest
extent possible, all nuances intended in the source material. Priority shall be given to
providing in-person interpreters where programmatically possible.

Section 6. Language Access Requirements for a Locally Covered Entity

A. Each County Agency that declares itself a Locally Covered Entity under Section 3 above

shall provide language access services for all direct public services it administers.

B. Language Access Services shall include, but not be limited to:

LL INTRO. 6-1
9/12/2024
Page 5 of 9



1. Providing competent and timely interpretation services to individuals in their
primary or preferred language. Competent interpretation shall mean a spoken or
signed, real-time communication in which the qualified human interpreter is
fluent in both the source and target language and is trained as an interpreter. The
interpreter shall know relevant terminology and provide accurate interpretations
by choosing equivalent expressions that convey the best matching and meaning to
the source language and capture, to the greatest extent possible, all nuances
intended in the source material. This interpretation services requirement shall
commence 365 days after this law is filed with the Secretary of State.

2. Identifying and translating vital documents provided to the public, including but
not limited to, forms, program signage and instructions provided to or completed
by program participants and beneficiaries in each designated countywide

language:

a. Existing vital documents must be translated within 365 days of the
publication date of the Designated Countywide Languages to each County
Agency. A County Agency will translate existing vital documents into
any newly designated languages within 365 days of the publication date of
the Designated Countywide Languages to each County Agency.

b. New vital documents, produced after the publication date of the
Designated Countywide Languages to each County Agency, must be
translated as soon as is practicable but no later than 120 days after the
English version is released to the public

c. Emergency communications must be translated immediately, or no more
than 5 days following the release of the English version.

3. Translation of pre-recorded informational messages on agency phone lines that
provide vital public information in English, including emergency alerts and public
service announcements.

4. Posting of multilingual signage in conspicuous locations about the availability of
free interpretation services. Where practicable, the same information should be
communicated via pre-recorded announcements in each designated countywide
language on the public address system in public waiting areas.

5. Accommodations for communication access for disabled members of the public
shall be available upon request including, but not limited to:

a. American Sign Language Interpretation via an on-site interpreter or Video
Remote Interpreter (VRI).

LL INTRO. 6-1
9/12/2024
Page 6 of 9



b. Communication Access Realtime Translation for individuals who are deaf,
hard of hearing or have hearing loss.

c. All other communications access accommodations as required by the
application of the Americans with Disabilities Act.

C. Language Access Services provided by the County Agency must meet or exceed the
following quality standards:

1. Translation or interpretation via online applications, artificial intelligence, or
machine interpretation software shall only be used after a County Agency has
attempted to secure qualified translators or interpreters via booking on-site
personnel, human reviewed translation processes, or telephone or video call
services.

2. Family members, other clients, and any other member of the public who is not a
qualified interpreter, shall not be used for interpretation with respect to the
provision of services or benefits, except in the case of an unforeseeable life-
threatening emergency.

3. Minors shall not be used for interpretation with respect to the provision of
services or benefits, except in the case of an unforeseeable life-threatening
emergency.

4. All language access services must be provided by qualified human interpreters
and translators competent in both languages, keeping in mind cultural context,
without adding, omitting, or changing the message's original meaning.

5. All language access services must be provided at no cost to the person seeking
services from the County Agency.

Section 7. Amending Article 17 of the Erie County Charter

Erie County Local Law No. 1-1959, constituting the Erie County Charter, as amended, is hereby
amended at Article 17 to add a new Section 1708 to read as follows:

Section 1708. Language Access Advisory Board. There shall be a Language Access Advisory
Board to advise on matters relating to LEP individuals and language access. The Board shall
consist of eleven (11) members including:

1. County Executive, or their designee;
LL INTRO. 6-1

9/12/2024
Page 7 of 9



2. County Clerk, or their designee;

3. County Comptroller, or their designee;
4. District Attorney, or their designee;

5. Sheriff, or their designee;

6. Six community members appointed by the County Executive. All six community
member appointments will be subject to confirmation by the County Legislature.

Community Members. Community members appointed to the board shall be reflective of the
diversity of the County’s limited English proficient communities, disability communities in need
of communications access, representatives from community organizations and faith-based
organizations serving either LEP or disabled communities in need of communications access.

Board Membership for Six Community Member Seats. These members of the Board shall be
appointed for a term of three years. No member may serve more than two terms, except that
those members who are initially appointed to complete the unexpired term of a member may also
be eligible to serve two subsequent terms of three years each. The Board shall annually designate
one member to serve as Board chairperson. In the event of a vacancy occasioned other than by
expiration of the term of office of the chairperson, the Board shall appoint a successor to that
office from the Board's membership. Board seats occupied by an Elected Official, or their
designee, are not subject to term limits.

The Advisory Board shall be empaneled within ninety days following the effective date of this act.
A quorum shall consist of a majority of the members of the Advisory Board entitled to vote on the
matter under consideration. Approval of any matter shall require the affirmative vote of a majority
of the members voting thereon. The Advisory Board shall adopt by-laws for the management and
regulation of its affairs.

The Board shall:

1. Designate the top six languages LEP individuals speak in Erie County as the Countywide
Languages for translation and issue notices to all County Agencies by the last day in
February on a biennial basis. This process shall consider a wide variety of data sources,
including but not limited to data collected by the U.S Census and American Community
Survey, public schools, local interpreting agencies, federal refugee resettlement programs
and County Agencies to determine which language groups are most in need of language
services.

2. Advise County Agencies in developing and implementing their Language Access Plan.

LL INTRO. 6-1
9/12/2024
Page 8 of 9



3. Review Agency Language Access Plans and provide written evaluation of the
implementation of those plans.

4. Create a mechanism to interact with public regarding proper language access plan
implementation.

5. Collect and review annual reports from County Agency language access coordinators.

6. Submit a comprehensive annual report based on County Agency compliance
submissions, publish findings on the data collected and additional policy
recommendations to the Erie County Legislature no later than the last day in June each
year.

Section 8. Right to Privacy

The need for/use of language services by an individual contacting the County shall not be deemed
by any County employee as a basis for inquiring into information related to an individual’s
immigration status or other personal attributes. No County employee shall inquire about or disclose
confidential information, including, but not limited to, immigration status, unless such inquiry or
disclosure is required by law.

Section 9. Effective Date
A. This Local Law shall take effect 180 days after it is filed with the Secretary of State.
Section 10. Severability

If any clause, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, section or part of this law or the application thereof
to any person, individual, corporation, firm, partnership, or business shall be adjudged by any court
of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unconstitutional, such order or judgment shall not affect,
impair or invalidate the remainder thereof but shall be confined in its operation to the clause,
sentence, paragraph, subdivision, section or part of this law, or in its specific application.

Sponsors:
April N.M. Baskin
Timothy Meyers

LL INTRO. 6-1
9/12/2024
Page 9 of 9



Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT

Report No. 11 ENERGY & ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE




Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT

Report No. 10 FINANCE & MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE




Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT

Report No. 10 HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE




Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT

Report No. 13 PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE




Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT

Report No. 14 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE




Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT

Report No. 2 GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS COMMITTEE




Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT

Report No. 2 COMMUNITY ENRICHMENT COMMITTEE




Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBIJECT
INTRO. 16-1 GILMOUR, BARGNESI, &  Call for an External Forensic Audit of the
' VINAL County Clerk's Office
Attachments

24INTRO. 16-1




A RESOLUTION TO BE SUBMITTED BY
LEGISLATORS GILMOUR, BARGNESI, AND VINAL

Re: Call for an External Forensic Audit of the County Clerk’s Office

WHEREAS, the Erie County Comptroller’s Office recently conducted two audits of the
County Clerk's Office - Registrar Division between January 1, 2022 and December 31, 2022; and

WHEREAS, the audits found some troubling issues in the Clerk’s office, including the
use of outdated software in managing public funds; and

WHEREAS, the use of outdated software and outdated office managing practices have
led to errors in reporting, collecting, and distributing mortgage tax revenues; and

WHEREAS, those revenues are important to the towns and cities within the County, the
Niagara Frontier Transportation Authority, and the State of New York Mortgage Agency; and

WHEREAS, throughout the course of the audit, the Comptroller’s office has found many
instances of inconsistencies and discrepancies within the Office of the County Clerk, and for that
reason have recommended an external audit be conducted; and

WHEREAS, an external audit will allow for an independent, full-service, professional
audit agency to build upon the internal audits that have been conducted and provide expert
recommendations to ensure our residents’ County tax dollars are protected to the highest degree;
and

WHEREAS, this Honorable Body previously approved Intro. 5-4 (2024) and Intro. 9-6
(2024) calling for an external audit of the office of County Clerk; and

WHEREAS, this Honorable Body’s authority to call for such external audit lies in the
County Charter, Article 2, Section 201(8) which provides the Legislature to “make studies and
investigations it deems in the best interest of the County, and in connection therewith to obtain
professional and technical advice...”; and

WHEREAS, the call on the County Attorney to conduct an RFP to conduct an external
audit on the office of the County Clerk is the Legislature acting to make an investigation in the
best interest of the County, due to previous findings of improper use of taxpayer dollars, by
obtaining professional and technical advice from an independent, external auditor with the
expertise and capacity to complete a thorough audit of the office of the County Clerk.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT

RESOLYVED, this honorable body rescinds Intro. 5-4 (2024) calling on the County Clerk
to conduct an RFP for an external audit of the office of the County Clerk; and be it further

INTRO. 16-1
Page 1 of 2



RESOLVED, that the County Attorney is authorized to hire an accountant to perform an
audit, as articulated in the request for proposals issued to various accounting firms on June 20 by
the County Attorney, with the specific scope of work to be an audit of the Erie County Clerk’s
Concentration Account for the time period starting in 2017 and ending in 2021 in order to
discover any further criminal conduct by any county employee, to discover if the Clerk’s office
has accurately and appropriately distributed monies collected by the Registrar’s office and to
recommend more effective controls over this account; and be it further

RESOLVED, that the Erie County Clerk and the Erie County Comptroller be consulted
during the audit, including but not limited to, participation as a subject in any interviews
conducted by the external audit team, and the ability to review the external audit prior to its
finalization; and be it further

RESOLVED, that the Erie County Clerk is directed to preserve any records, both paper
and electronic, that have the potential to be lost as the Clerk begins its transition to a new
software system; and be it further

RESOLVED, the Clerk of the Legislature is directed to send copies of this resolution to
the Erie County Clerk, the Erie County Comptroller, the Erie County Executive, the County
Attorney, the Budget Director, the New York State Comptroller, and any other parties deemed
necessary.

INTRO. 16-1
Page 2 of 2



Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT

INTRO. 16-2 BARGNESI & GILMOUR Re-Appropriation of Public Benefit Funding

Attachments

24INTRO. 16-2




A RESOLUTION TO BE SUBMITTED BY
LEGISLATORS BARGNESI AND GILMOUR

Re: Re-Appropriation of Public Benefit Funding

WHEREAS, Pitch Hamburg was awarded $10,000 in public benefit funding by the Erie
County Legislature in the 2024 Erie County adopted budget; and

WHEREAS, Lion Club of Kenmore was awarded $10,000 in public benefit funding by
the Erie County Legislature in Intro 12-3 (2024); and

WHEREAS, these organizations are not able to accept the funds, and the funding should
be transferred to an alternative organization; and

WHEREAS, as in similar 2021, 2022 and 2023 situations, it is the intention of this
Honorable Body to transfer such funding to community organizations serving the public.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT

RESOLVED, that authorization is provided to transfer $10,000 of 2024 public benefit
funding to Hamburg Bulldogs Booster Club, Inc; and be it further

RESOLVED, that authorization is provided to transfer $10,000 of 2024 public benefit
funding to the Town of Tonawanda; and be it further

RESOLVED, that the Director of the Division of Budget and Management is authorized
to make any adjustments necessary to effectuate the intent of this resolution or any other changes
identified by the Office of the Erie County Comptroller; and be it further

RESOLVED, that certified copies of this resolution be sent to the Erie County Executive,
the Erie County Comptroller, the Director of Budget and Management, and any other party
deemed necessary and proper.

INTRO. 16-2
Page 1 of 1



Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT

COMM. 16E-1 BASKIN

2024 Committee Assignments

24COMM. 16E-1

Attachments




L

ERIE COUNTY LEGISLATURE

92 Franklin Street - 4th Floor
Buffalo, New York 14202

==y I Tk G TBF

e o liEm RS AL

2024 Committee Assignments

Finance & Management

Chair: Michael Kooshoian

Chair of Legislature: April Baskin

Vice Chair: Timothy Meyers

Members: John Gilmour
Christopher Greene
John Mills

Health & Human Services

Chair: Lawrence Dupre
Chair of Legislature: April Baskin

Vice Chair: Jeanne Vinal

Members: Michael Kooshoian
Lindsay Lorigo
Frank Todaro

Government Affairs

Chair: John Bargnesi
Chair of Legislature: April Baskin

Vice Chair: John Gilmour

Members: Michael Kooshoian
Lindsay Lorigo
Frank Todaro

Energy & Environment

Chair: Timothy Meyers
Chair of Legislature: April Baskin

Vice Chair: Lawrence Dupre

Members: John Bargnesi
John Mills
Frank Todaro

Public Safety

Chair: John Gilmour

Chair of Legislature: April Baskin

Vice Chair: Timothy Meyers

Members: Lawrence Dupre
Frank Todaro
Christopher Greene

Community Enrichment

Chair: Jeanne Vinal
Chair of Legislature: April Baskin
Vice Chair: John Bargnesi
Members: Lawrence Dupre
John Mills
Christopher Greene
COMM. 16E-1

Page 1 of 2

Fr1l

=
e

|ty

LS E
L i E e
ERR R

futd
bl



Economic Development Minority & Women Business Enterprise

Chair: John Gilmour Chair: Lawrence Dupre
Chair of Legislature: April Baskin Chair of Legislature: April Baskin
Vice Chair: Jeanne Vinal Vice Chair: Jeanne Vinal
Members: Timothy Meyers Members: John Bargnesi
Frank Todaro John Mills
John Mills Lindsay Lorigo

Small Business

Chair: Jeanne Vinal
Chair of Legislature: April Baskin
Vice Chair: John Bargnesi
Members: Michael Kooshoian
John Mills
Frank Todaro

COMM. 16E-1
Page 2 of 2



Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT

Appointment to the Albright-Knox Art

COMM. 16E-2 COUNTY EXECUTIVE Gallery Board of Directors

Attachments

24COMM. 16E-2




[t r‘_;

—ie i iS5 w-—i

COUNTY OF ERIE
MARK C. POLONCARZ

County EXECUTIVE

September 11, 2024

Alice F. Jacobs

Albright Knox Art Gallery
1285 ElImwood Avenue
Buffalo, NY 14222

Re: Albright-Knox Art Gallery Board of Directors

Dear Ms. Jacobs:

As an ex-officio member of the Albright-Knox Art Gallery Board of Directors, | am writing to
inform you of my designation of David Bojanowski to represent the undersigned for the Albright-Knox
Art Gallery Board of Directors. David’s contact information is as follows:

David Bojanowski
Office of the Erie County Executive
95 Franklin Street
16 Floor
Buffalo, NY 14202
David.Bojanowski@erie.gov
(716) 858-8500

| look forward to introducing you to David in the near future. Please be sure his name is added
to the email list for correspondence and upcoming board meetings. Thank you for your assistance.

Slncerely yours;

Mark C. PoIoncarz
Erie County Executive

MCP/nn

Cc: Appointee
Erie County Legislature

RaTH BUILDING ® 95 FRANKLIN STREET * BUFFALO, N.Y. ¢ 14202 ¢ (716) 858-8500 * WwWwW.ERIE.GOV

COMM. 16E-2
Page 1 of 1

M
1,
T



Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT

COMM. 16E-3 COUNTY EXECUTIVE Appointment to the.Zoologlcal Society of
Buffalo Board of Directors

Attachments

24COMM. 16E-3




A CCLEGSERL
-=_ :.-
Counrty OF ERIE

MaAark C. POLONCARZ

County EXECUTIVE

September 11, 2024

Erie County Legislature
92 Franklin Street — 4% Floor
Buffalo, NY 14202

Re:  Appointment Zoological Society of Buffalo Board of Directors

Dear Honorable Members:

Pursuant to the powers vested in me by Section 3.3(b) of the Zoological Society of
Buffalo Board of Directors County Charter, | hereby appoint the following individual to the
Zoological Society of Buffalo bylaws:

David Bojanowski
95 Franklin Street
16™ Floor
Buffalo, NY 14202

Should you have any questions regarding these appointments please feel free to contact
my office at (716) 858-8500.

Sincerely yours,

(el aPsonu,—

Mark C. Poloncarz, Esq.
Erie County Executive

MCP/nn

cc: Appointee

Page | 1

RaTH BUILDING * 95 FRANKLIN STREET * BUFFALO, N.Y. * 14202 ¢ (716) 858-8500 * wwWw.ERIE.GOV
‘ COMM. 16E-3
Page 1 of 1

(]

o

it
“

3%

Ml

B



Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT
COMM. 16E-4 COUNTY EXECUTIVE Appomtment to the Arts in Public Places
Committee
Attachments

24COMM. 16E-4




CouNTy OF ERIE
Magrk C. POLONCARZ

Counrty EXECUTIVE

September 11, 2024

Erie County Legislature
92 Franklin Street — 4™ Floor
Buffalo, NY 14202

Re: Appointment to the Arts in Public Places Committee

Dear Honorable Members,

Please be advised that, pursuant to Erie County Local Law No. 4 of 2023, | hereby appoint the
following individual as an ex-officio member to represent the County Executive’s office:

David Bojanowski
Office of the Erie County Executive
95 Franklin Street, 16™ Floor
Buffalo, NY 14202
Ex-Officio Appointment

Should you have any questions regarding this appointment or the appointment process, please feel
free to contact my office at (716) 858-8500.

Sincerely yours,

M%,_

Mark C. Poloncarz, Esq.
Erie County Executive

cc: Appointees
Daniel Castle, Commissioner Environment and Planning

RaTH BUILDING ¢ 95 FRANKLIN STREET * BUFFaLO, N.Y. © 14202 ¢ (716) 858-8500 * www.ERIE.GOV
COMM. 16E-4

Page 1 of 1



Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT

Appointment to the Buffalo & Erie County

COMM. 16E-5 COUNTY EXECUTIVE Board of Trustees

Attachments

24COMM. 16E-5




CouNTy OF ERIE
MARK C. PoLONCARZ

CounTy EXECUTIVE

September 11, 2024

John Spears

Buffalo & Erie County Public Library
One Lafayette Square

Buffalo, NY 14203

Re: Appointment to the Buffalo & Erie County Board of Trustees

Dear Mr. Spears,

Please be advised that, | hereby appoint the following individual as an ex-officio member to
represent the County Executive’s office:

David Bojanowski
Office of the Erie County Executive
95 Franklin Street, 16" Floor
Buffalo, NY 14202
Ex-Officio Appointment

Should you have any questions regarding this appointment or the appointment process, please feel
free to contact my office at (716) 858-8500.

Sincerely yours,

Mark C. Poloncarz, Esq.
Erie County Executive

cc: Appointee
Erie County Legislature

RaTH BUILDING * 95 FRANKLIN STREET * BUFFALO, N.Y. * 14202 ¢ (716) 858-8500 * wwW.ERIE.GOV

COMM. 16E-5
Page 1 of 1



Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT

COMM. 16E-6 COUNTY EXECUTIVE Appointments to the Fire Advisory Board

Attachments

24COMM. 16E-6




o

COUNTY OF ERIE
MARK C. POLONCARZ

COUNTY EXECUTIVE

September 10, 2024

The Honorable Erie County Legislature
92 Franklin Street, 4t Floor
Buffaio, New York 14202

Re: Appointments to the Fire Advisory Board
Dear Honorable Members:

Pursuant to the powers vested in me by Section 1403 of the Erie County Charter, |
hereby appoint the following individuals to the Fire Advisory Board for a term ending December
31, 2026. '

Thomas Morris, Jr. Daniel Nash Matthew D. Coons
179 Whaley Avenue 240 N Meadowbrook Park 50 South Lane
East Aurora, NY 14052 Cheektowaga, NY 14206 Orchard Park, NY 14127

Should you have any, please feel free to contact my office at (716) 858-8500.
Sincerely yours,

Uz PiSsvear,

Mark C. Poloncarz
Erie County Executive

MCP/nn
cc: Appointee
Christopher Couell

RATH BUILDING + 95 FRANKLIN STREET » BUFFALO, N.Y. » 14202 - (716) 858-8500 « WWW.ERIE.GOV

COMM. 16E-6
Page 1 of 4



Thomas Morris Jr

thomaseawny@gmailcom | 7164911979 | East Avrcora, NY 14052

in my 18-year volunteer career with the East Aurora Fire Department, currently | am a Rescue Captain and a Chaplain.
Previously | was an Assistant Chief for 2 years, a Captain for an Engine company for 3 years, a Captain for a Ladder
company for 10 years, and a Lieutenant for 1 year.

Classes/Education in chronological order:

Firefighter 1, June 2006

ICS 200, August 2006

Accident Victim Extrication, October 2006

Apparatus Operator — EVOC, October 2007

Intro to Fire Officer 1, February 2008

Fire Officer 1, March 2008

ICS 300, May 2008

Rescue Technician Basic, November 2008

Fire Behavior & Arson Awareness, June 2009

Apparatus Operator — Pump, October 2009

Hazmat First Responder Ops, April 2012

Apparatus Operator — Aerial Devices, May 2012

Truck Company Operations, June 2012

Firefighter Survival, September 2012

ICS 100, September 2012

Hazmat Technician — Basic, March 2013

Basic Chaplaincy, May 2014

Suicide Prevention, Intervention and Postvention, June 2014

Hazmat Incident Command, November 2014

individual Crisis Intervention and Peer Support, January 2015

Group Crisis Intervention, March 2015

Advanced Individual Crisis Intervention and Peer Support, February 2016
Engine Company Ops, October 2016

Pastoral Crisis Intervention 1 and Pastoral Crisis Intervention 2, August 2018
Tactical Fireground Simulations, March 2019

Company Officers Leadership Training, March 2020

ICS 505 — Religious and Cultural Literacy and Competency in Disaster, April 2021

Techniques for Delivering Bad News for Crisis Response Personnel, April 2021

COMM. 16E-6
Page 2 of 4



Daniel Nash
Firefighter

Experience

1992 - Current
Firefighter / Doyle #2

I am an active firefighter and CFR at Doyle 2.
| am currently enrolled in EMT-B class

| have held the following positions at Doyle 2

Chief 2007-2010

13t Assistant Chief 2005-2007

2" Assistant Chief 2003-2005

31 Assistant Chief 2001-2003

EMS Captain 1999-2001 and 2013-2014
President 2015-2017

Vice President 2011-2012 and 2015-2016
Member of the Board of Directors
Chairman of the Board for 3 years

Fire Commissioner 2021-2023

Served on 3 truck committees designing 3 pieces of apparatus.

Involved in updating District SOP/SOG

Skills

e Creativity

e Leadership

o QOrganization

e Problem solving
o Teamwork

Contact

240 N. Meadowbrook Pkwy
Cheektowaga , NY 14206

(716) 870-9056
Nashd2237@gmail.com

COMM. 16E-6
Page 3 of 4



Matthew D. Coons
50 South Lane Orchard Park, NY 14127 - (716) 462-7978

mdcoons9@gmail.com

Christopher Couell

Erie County Division of Fire Safety
Department of Emergency Services
Training & Operations Center

3359 Broadway

Cheektowaga, NY 14227

Deputy Commissioner Couell,

I am writing to express my interest in joining the Erie County Fire Advisory Board, | feel that with my
experience in Fire, EMS, Police and the Military | would be an asset to the board. | started my fire service
career in Doyle 1 Fire Company, rising in the ranks over the years to EMS Captain. During that time, | was
able to effect change throughout the training and EMS programs for the company and the district. One
of the biggest changes being the establishment of the Active Shooter task force in Cheektowaga, while
working with Rural Metro, Cheektowaga Police and the Cheektowaga fire companies we were able to
effectively stand up a program that successfully prepared First Responders in Cheektowaga for Active
Threat Events. While volunteering at Doyle 1 | worked as an EMT Basic for Rural Metro Medical Service
and then American Medical Response, opening my eyes to the challenges of both paid and volunteer
EMS and the differences of a First Response and Transporting agency.

Continuing my pathway of public service in 2016 | join the Air Force with a specialty in Security Forces
(Military Police). This allowed me to gain more training and experience teaching, implementing
programs and effecting change for the betterment of the organization. In my civilian career 1 am a Police
Officer for the Department of Veterans Affairs, where | have been afforded to take more training in
Active Shooter Response, Stop the Bleed, Tactical Emergency Casualty Care, but most of all it afforded
me the experience to interact with other agencies forming memorandums of understanding and
combined training events. Most Recently | have joined Orchard Park Fire Company and have returned to
active status as a firefighter in Erie County.

If given the opportunity | believe | would be an asset to the team and help the continuous improvement
to the fire service of Erie County for the firefighters and the people of Erie County whom we serve.
Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,
Matthew D. Coons

COMM. 16E-6
Page 4 of 4



Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT
COMM. 16E-7 COUNTY CLERK External Audit of the Erie County Clerk's
Office
Attachments

24COMM. 16E-7




CounTty or ERIE

MicHAEL P. KEARNS
County CLERK

September 17, 2024

Hon. April N.M. Baskin

Erie County Legislature

92 Franklin Street — Fourth Floor
Buffalo, New York 14202

Re: External Audit of the Erie County Clerk’s Office

Dear Chairwoman Baskin;:

[ write in response to and to supplement the letter filed on September 17, 2024 with this Honorable
Body by Erie County Attorney Jeremy Toth, which pertains to an external audit of the Erie County
Clerk’s Office. To clarify, the Clerk’s Office never asked to take over the work or to remove the
Law Department, we merely stated we were in favor of Attorney Toth’s proposal to handle the
work ourselves, which we understood to mean selecting an outside firm and deciding on the scope
of work.

This Honorable Body first requested my office issue a Request for Proposals (“RFP”) to conduct
an external audit via Resolution passed on March 7, 2024 (Intro. 5-4, enclosed). At that time, my
office was in the midst of issuing an RFP for new software, which incidentally was one of the
goals enumerated by Intro. 5-4 (“Resolved, the RFP shall include a goal of identifying best
practices for a universal accounting system, including software”). The RFP for software was
posted on April 10, 2024, and a Resolution (Comm. 15E-11) is currently before this Honorable
Body to approve a vendor for a new system, which is supported by the Erie County Comptroller.

On May 23, 2024, this Honorable Body approved Intro. 9-6, which directed the Erie County
Department of Law to enter into contract for the external audit requested in Intro. 5-4 (also
enclosed), pointing to the fact that the Clerk’s Office had not yet issued an RFP for an outside firm.

As listed in Attorney Toth’s letter, my office contacted his office via letter on May 24, 2024, the
day after Intro. 9-6 was passed. The purpose of this letter was to express our willingness to work
with the Law Department on this matter, and request a meeting on same.

Also as stated in Attorney Toth’s letter, he declined to meet with the Clerk’s Office and instead
our offices exchanged emails on logistics in the firm selection process. Eventually, Attorney Toth
suggested via email on August 30, 2024 that my office “take up this work, as the first legislative
resolution directed.” My office replied via email on September 12, 2024 that we would be in favor
of Attorney Toth’s proposal.

ERiE CounTY HALL * 92 FRANKLIN STREET * BUFFALO, N.Y. ¢ 14202 ¢ PHONE: (716) 858-8785 » ErieCountyClerkOffice@erie.gov

COMM. 16E-7
Page 1 of 4



Erie County Legislature
September 17, 2024
Page 2

Given that a goal of Intro. 5-4’s request for an external audit of the Clerk’s Office was to identify
best practices for new software, the fact that the Clerk’s Office has identified a vendor for new
software, that is supported by the Comptroller, arguably makes an external audit no longer
necessary at this point.

That being said, my Office remains ready to cooperate on external audit if this Honorable Body

still desires one.
] o M

Respectfully submitted,

HAEL P. KEARNS
County Clerk

MPK/wal

Encl.

COMM. 16E-7
Page 2 of 4



A RESOLUTION TO BE SUBMITTED BY
LEGISLATOR JOHNSON C Co AR 5L GiSE

Re: Call for an External Forensic Audit of the County Clerk’s Office

WHEREAS, the Erie County Comptroller’s Office recently conducted two audits of the County Clerk's
Office - Registrar Division between January 1, 2022 and December 31, 2022; and

WHEREAS, the audits found some troubling issues in the Clerk’s office, including the use of outdated
software in managing public funds; and

WHEREAS, the use of outdated software and outdated office managing practices have led to errors in
reporting, collecting, and distributing mortgage tax revenues; and

WHEREAS, those revenues are important to the towns and cities within the County, the Niagara
Frontier Transportation Authority, and the State of New York Mortgage Agency; and

WHEREAS, throughout the course of the audit, the Comptroller’s office has found many instances of
inconsistencies and discrepancies within the Office of the County Clerk, and for that reason have recommended
an external audit be conducted; and

WHEREAS, an external audit will allow for an independent, full-service, professional audit agency to
build upon the internal audits that have been conducted and provide expert recommendations to ensure our
residents’ County tax dollars are protected to the highest degree.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT

RESOLVED, request the County Clerk issue a request for proposals (“RFP”) to solicit responses for a
external forensic audit of the County Clerk’s office, including both the Registrar Division and the Auto Bureau
Division; and

RESOLVED, the RFP shall include a goal of identifying best practices for a universal accounting
system, including software, to address the issues raised by the multiple software program approach that has
plagued Erie County tax dollars over the past 10+ years; and

RESOLVED, that the Erie County Comptroller be consulted on the process, including but not limited to
a seat on the RFP scoring committee, participation as a subject in any interviews conducted by the external
audit team, and the ability to review the external audit prior to its finalization; and

RESOLVED, the Erie County Clerk shall work with the Division of Budget and Management to
identify funding in its budget to fund an external forensic audit, and if there are insufficient funds within its own
budget, work with this honorable body to provide the additional funds needed to ensure a full forensic, external
audit is fully funded; and

RESOLVED, the Clerk of the Legislature is directed to send copies of this resolution to the Erie County
Clerk, the Erie County Comptroller, the Erie County Executive, the Budget Director, the New York State
Comptroller, and any other parties deemed necessary.

INTRO. 54

Page 1 of 1
COMM. 16E-7

Page 3 of 4



STATE OF NEW YORK

LEGISLATURE OF ERIE COUNTY
CLERK'’S OFFICE

BUFFALO, N.Y., May 23, 2024
TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN:

1 HEREBY CERTIFY, that at the 10th Session of the Legislature of Erie County, held
in the Legislative Chambers, in the City of Buffalo, on the 23rd day of May, 2024 A.D., a Resolution
was adopted, of which the following is a true copy:

A RESOLUTION SUBMITTED BY
LEGISLATOR JOHNSON

Re: Compelling the Department of Law to Engage in a Contract for an External Audit of the Erie
County Clerk’s Office

WHEREAS, the Erie County Comptroller issued two audits of the Erie County Clerk’s Office on June
30, 2024 and February 5, 2024 along with one analysis on August 24, 2023 which identified both large sums
of missing cash and a stolen check; and

WHEREAS, this Honorable Body passed INTRO 5-4 (2024) on March 7, 2024 entitled “Call For an
External Forensic Audit of the County Clerk’s Office” directing the Clerk to issue a request for proposals
(“RFP”) for such an audit with multiple goals including identifying best practices while consulting the Ene
County Comptroller’s Office for guidance; and

WHEREAS, the Erie County Comptroller’s work product and subsequent referral to the Erie County
District Attorney and Office of the State Comptroller lead to the arrest of Alexander McDougall, the former
First Deputy Clerk for Finance, with a Class C felony charge of Grand Larceny in the Second Degree; and

WHEREAS, to date, there has been no subsequent action on the RFP process from the Erie County
Clerk’s Office nor consultation with the Division of Purchase nor the Erie County Comptroller’s Office nor
the Division of Budget and Management.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT

RESOLVED, that the Erie County Legislature hereby directs the Erie County Department of Law to
enter into contract with an outside auditing firm for the purpose of conducting an external forensic audit of the
Erie County Clerk’s Office, including both the Registrar and Auto Bureau Divisions, to the extent deemed
practical by the auditor; and be it further

RESOLVED, that authorization is hereby given to the Division of Budget and Management to the to
transfer necessary funding to the Department of Law’s 2024 General Fund Budget (Fund 110, Funds Center
16010) Account 516020 — Professional Services, Contracts & Fees for such an engagement; and be it further

RESOLVED, that the Department of Law is advised to consult and work with the Erie County
Comptroller’s Office in verifying requirements of and assisting the outside auditor to ensure expediency and

non-duplication of work; and be it further

RESOLVED, that certified copies of this resolution be transmitted to the County Executive’s Office,
Comptroller’s Office, Clerk’s Office, Department of Law, and Division of Budget and Management.

REFERENCE: INTRO. 9-6 (2024)

ATTEST

OLIVIA M. OWENS
Clerk of the Legislature of Erie County

COMM. 16E-7
Page 4 of 4



Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT
COMM. 16E-8 COMPTROLLER Notification of Forthcoming 2024 Series B
Bond Sale
Attachments

24COMM. 16E-8




Kevin R. HARDWICK

September 17, 2024

Honorable Members Honorable Mark C. Poloncarz, Esq.
Erie County Legislature Erie County Executive

92 Franklin Street, Fourth Floor 95 Franklin Street, 16 Floor
Buffalo, New York 14202 Buffalo, New York 14202

Re: Notification of Forthcoming 2024 Series B Bond Sale

Dear Honorable Members and County Executive Poloncarz:

Pursuant to Section 1802 (k) of the Erie County Charter, | am writing to inform you that my office
plans to close the County’s 2024 Series B bond sale for the Buffalo Bills Stadium on or around October 7,

2024.

The County will sell approximately $110 million of new capital public improvements bonds for the
new stadium and receive $125 million in net proceeds to fund our obligation. The bonds will be
underwritten by Jefferies, Ramirez & Co., TD Securities, Raymond James and JP Morgan Securities. In
addition, DA Davidson and Bancroft Capital will participate in the Selling Group.

If you have any questions, please contact my office.

Sincerely,

DL R fhl—

Kevin R. Hardwick, Ph.D.
Erie County Comptroller

cc: Mark Cornell, Director of Budget and Management
Erie County Fiscal Stability Authority

95 FRANKLIN STREET * Room 1100 ¢ BurraLo, N.Y. * 14202

PHONE: (716) 858-8400 * Fax: (716) 858-6195 » www.etie.gov/comptrollet
COMM. 16E-8

Page 1 of 1



Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT

COMM. 16E-9 COMPTROLLER

Erie County's NYSDOT Single Audit Report

24COMM. 16E-9

Attachments




Erie County COMPTROLLER
KeviN R. HARDWICK

September 17, 2024

Honorable Members

Erie County Legislature

92 Franklin Street, Fourth Floor
Buffalo, New York 14202

Mark C. Poloncarz, Esq.
Erie County Executive

95 Franklin Street, 16™ Floor
Buffalo, New York 14202

Dear Honorable Members and County Executive Poloncarz:

Enclosed is a copy of Erie County’s New York State Department of Transportation
(NYSDOT) Single Audit Report for the year ended December 31, 2023. The report is required
pursuant to Draft 43 of the New York State Codification of Rules and Regulations.

A copy of this report has been filed with the NYSDOT’s Contract Audit Bureau.
If you have any questions regarding this report, please contact me at 716-858-8400.

Very truly yours,

A 0 Ko
Kevin R. Hardwick, Ph.D.
Erie County Comptroller

Enclosure

cc: Mark Cornell, Director of Budget and Management
William Geary, Commissioner of Public Works
Erie County Audit Committee Members
Drescher & Malecki LLP (without Enclosure)

95 FRANKLIN STREET ®* Room 1100 « Burraro, N.Y. * 14202

PHONE: (716) 858-8400 * Fax: (716) 858-6195 « wwwerie.gov/comptroller
COMM. 16E-9
Page 1 of 15



COUNTY OF ERIE,
NEW YORK

New York State Department of Transportation
Financial Assistance Schedules for the
Year Ended December 31, 2023 and
Independent Auditors’ Report

COMM. 16E-9
Page 2 of 15



COMM. 16E-9
Page 3 of 15



COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK
Table of Contents
Year Ended December 31, 2023

New York State Department of Transportation
Draft Part 43 of NYCRR Schedules and Report:

Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for New York State Department of
Transportation Assistance Programs and Report on Internal Control

Over Compliance in Accordance with Draft Part 43 of NYCRR ...

Schedule of New York State Department of

Transportation Assistance Expended..........ccoveeeicniniinnrcniceiiecie e

Notes to Schedule of New York State Department of

Transportation Assistance Expended.........cccoviiciiiiiniiniicisisccrs e

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs of New York State

Department of Transportation Assistance Expended............cccoooeivniniiiciiinienn,

COMM. 16E-9
Page 4 of 15



COMM. 16E-9
Page 5 of 15



DRESCHER & MALECKI LLP
Q@ 2721 Transit Road, Suite 111
Elma, New York 14059
. Telephone: 716.565.2299
#® Fax: 716.389.5178 Certifled Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR
NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION ASSISTANCE
PROGRAMS AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
IN ACCORDANCE WITH DRAFT PART 43 OF NYCRR

Honorable County Executive

Honorable County Comptroller

Honorable Members of the County Legislature
County of Erie, New York:

Report on Compliance for New York State Department of Transportation Assistance Programs
Opinion on New York State Department of Transportation Assistance Programs

We have audited the County of Erie, New York’s (the “County’”) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements identified as subject to audit in Draft Part 43 of the New York State Codification of Rules
and Regulations (“NYCRR”) that are applicable to each state transportation assistance program tested for
the year ended December 31, 2023. The program tested is identified in the summary of auditors’ results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the County complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that are applicable to each of its state transportation assistance programs tested for the
year ended December 31, 2023.

Basis for Opinion on New York State Department of Transportation Assistance Programs

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America (“GAAS”); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (“Government Auditing
Standards”); and Draft Part 43 of NYCRR. Our responsibilities under those standards and Draft Part 43 of
NYCRR are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our
report.

We are required to be independent of the County and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each state
transportation assistance program tested. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the County’s
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of
laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the County’s
state transportation assistance programs.

COMM. 16E-9
Page 6 of 15



Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion
on the County’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is
not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS,
Government Auditing Standards, and Draft Part 43 of NYCRR will always detect material noncompliance
when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for
that resulting from etror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above is considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about
the County’s compliance with the requirements of state transportation assistance program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and Draft Part 43 of
NYCRR, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the County’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred
to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

e Obtain an understanding of the County’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with Draft Part 43 of NYCRR, but not for the
purpose of exptressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal
control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state
transportation assistance program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
state transportation assistance program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.
A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state
transportation assistance program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

COMM. 16E-9
Page 7 of 15



Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses,
as defined above. However, material weakness or significant deficiencies in internal control over
compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Report on Schedule of New York State Department of Transportation Assistance Expended

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component units, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County as of and for the year ended December
31, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County’s basic
financial statements. We issued our report thereon, dated June 14, 2024, which contained an unmodified
opinion on those financial statements and includes an emphasis of matter paragraph regarding the
implementation of GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements,
and a reference to other auditors. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the
financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying Schedule
of New York State Department of Transportation Assistance Expended is presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by Draft Part 43 of NYCRR, and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Schedule of New York State Department of
Transportation Assistance Expended is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial
statements as a whole.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of Draft Part
43 of NYCRR. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purposes.

Unsder + Bledss o

September 5, 2024

COMM. 16E-9
Page 8 of 15



COMM. 16E-9
Page 9 of 15



COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK

Schedule of New York State Department of Transportation Assistance Expended

Year Ended December 31, 2023

NYSDOT
Contract/
Reference NYSDOT
Program Title/Description Number Expenditures
Consolidated Local Street and Highway Improvement Program ("CHIPS") M530000  § 18,458,740
N 1,612,964

Marchiselli Aid

Total New York State Department of Transportation
Assistance Expended

$ 20071704

*Marchiselli Aid Contract/Reference numbers: D04162, D04020, D040291, D040294, D040332, D040416, D040471, D040496,

D040497, D040636, D040668, D040718, and D040841.

See notes to Schedule of New York State Department of Transportation Assistance Expended.

COMM. 16E-9
Page 10 of 15



** THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK **

COMM. 16E-9
Page 11 of 15



COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK
Notes to Schedule of New York State Department of Transportation Assistance Expended
Year Ended December 31, 2023

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of New York State Department of Transportation (the “NYSDOT”)
Assistance Expended (the “Schedule”) includes the financial assistance provided by or passed
through NYSDOT for the year ended December 31, 2023. Because the Schedule presents only a
selected portion of the operations of the County of Erie, New York (the “County™), it is not intended
to and does not present the financial position, changes in net position or cash flows of the County.

The accompanying Schedule is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting.
2. MATCHING COSTS

Amounts identified as Marchiselli Aid represent matching costs for federally aided projects.

* ok ok ok ok ¥

COMM. 16E-9
Page 12 of 15



** THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK **

COMM. 16E-9
Page 13 of 15



COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs of
New York State Department of Transportation Assistance Expended
Year Ended December 31, 2023

Section I. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS

New York State Department of Transportation Assistance Expended:
Internal control over programs tested:

1. Material weakness(es) identified? Yes v No

. } R W
2. Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes v None reported

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for
programs tested: Unmodified

3. Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in

Y v N
accordance with Draft Part 43 of NYCRR? ©s ©

4. Tdentification of State Transportation Assistance Program tested:

Name of Program

Consolidated Local Street and Highway Improvement Program (“CHIPS”)

Section IT. COMPLIANCE FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
No findings noted.

COMM. 16E-9
Page 14 of 15



** THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK **

COMM. 16E-9
Page 15 of 15



Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT
COMM. 16E-10 COMPTROLLER gggmal Auditor's Management Letter for
Attachments

24COMM. 16E-10




Kevin R. HARDWICK

September 17, 2024

Honorable Members

Erie County Legislature

92 Franklin Street, Fourth Floor
Buffalo, New York 14202

Mark C. Poloncarz, Esq.
Erie County Executive

95 Franklin Street, 16" Floor
Buffalo, New York 14202

Dear Honorable Members and County Executive Poloncarz:

Enclosed is a copy of the external auditor’s (Drescher & Malecki LLP) Management Letter
(M/L) for Erie County for the year ended December 31, 2023.

Please be advised that although the M/L is dated June 14, 2024, this represents the date that
the external auditors completed their audit and field work for the 2023 audit. The letter was issued
September 13, 2024, by Drescher & Malecki.

If you have any questions regarding the 2023 M/L, please contact me at 858-8400.

Very truly yours,

LRt I gl
Kevin R. Hardwick, Ph.D.
Erie County Comptroller

Enclosure

cc: Mark Cornell, Director, Budget and Management
Erie County Audit Committee Members
Drescher & Malecki LLP (without Enclosure)

95 FRANKLIN STREET ®* RooMm 1100 « Burraro, N.Y. © 14202

PHONE: (716) 858-8400 * Fax: (716) 858-6195 ¢ www.etie.gov/comptroller
COMM. 16E-10

Page 1 of 7



@

DRESCHER & MALECKI LLP
2721 Transit Road, Suite 111
Elma, New York 14059
Telephone: 716.565.2299
Fax: 716.389.5178 Certlfied Public Accountants

R s e T 2 B WA T T e A e T Bk i g = —

June 14, 2024

Honorable County Executive

Honorable County Comptroller

Honorable Members of the County Legislature and
Audit Committee

County of Erie, New York:

In planning and performing our audit of the basic financial statements of the County of Erie, New York
(the “County”) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023, in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States,
we considered the County’s internal control over financial reporting (“internal control”) as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the County’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected on a timely basis. A reasonable possibility exists when the likelihood of an event
occurring is either reasonably possible or probable defined as follows:

® Reasonably possible. The chance of the future event or events occurring is more than remote
but less than likely.
e Probable. The future event or events are likely to occur.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses.
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may
exist that have not been identified.

During our audit we identified certain matters involving the internal control, other operational matters,
and future reporting requirements that are presented for your consideration. This letter does not affect
our report dated June 14, 2024 on the financial statements of the County. We will review the status of
these comments during our next audit engagement. Our comments and recommendations, all of which
have been discussed with appropriate members of management, are intended to improve the internal
control or result in other operating efficiencies. Our comments are summarized in Exhibit I.

COMM. 16E-10
Page 2 of 7

D e T



The County’s response to the matters identified in our audit has not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on
it.

The purpose of this communication, which is an integral part of our audit, is to describe for
management and those charged with governance, the scope of our testing of internal control and the
results of that testing. Accordingly, this communication is not intended to be and should not be used for
any other purpose.

Unscer 4 By up

June 14, 2024

COMM. 16E-10
Page 3 of 7



EXHIBIT 1

Department of Real Property Tax Services

Although the County’s Department of Real Property Tax Services (the “Department”) has begun the
process of developing a set of procedures, it does not have a complete comprehensive set of procedures
for their accounting processes and systems. Specifically, the Department has not formalized procedures
surrounding reconciling the records of the Govern tax management system (“Govern™) and the SAP
accounting software. The absence of such procedures heightens the risk that errors could go undetected
within the Department’s reporting of tax bills, payment in lieu of taxes receipts and other key functions of
the Department. The existence of these deficiencies creates an opportunity of fraud.

We recommend the Department continue to develop their comprehensive set of procedures for the
Department’s accounting processes and systems, including their procedures surrounding reconciling
Govern and SAP. Additionally, we recommend the Department continue to evaluate the Govern system
and determine if upgrading to a new system would be beneficial to the County.

County’s Response: Subsequent to December 31, 2023, the Department has implemented finalized
instructions implementing procedures for reconciling the records of the Govern tax management system
and the SAP accounting software. Further, the County is undertaking a plan to modemize its ERP system,
including an evaluation of the efficiencies of the Govern tax management system and the SAP accounting
software.

Sheriff’s Office

The Sheriff’s Office should improve their proper controls surrounding bookkeeping, journal entries, and
bank reconciliation process. Currently, the cash receipts and disbursements are compiled at month end
and inputted into the SAP system while the review of the bank statement is performed rather than as
transactions occur. This results in large lags in time between when the receipt/disbursement is
deposited/spent versus when it is reflected in the accounting software. Additionally, we found no
evidence of a formal review of the bank reconciliations each month and no formal review of journal
entries. The existence of these deficiencies creates an opportunity of fraud.

We recommend that the Sheriff’s Office develop a comprehensive procedures manual for their processes
and procedures, including cash receipts, cash disbursements, journal entries and bank reconciliations.
These should include who is responsible for preparing journal entries and bank reconciliations, when they
should be performed and who is reviewing them. Additionally, the Office should be recording
receipts/disbursements daily to reflect the activity within the Office.

County’s Response: The Erie County Sheriff’s Office is in the process of reorganizing our
Administrative Services Division. As we undergo this process, we are taking all suggestions into serious
consideration.

COMM. 16E-10
Page 4 of 7



EXHIBIT I

SAP Accounting Software Support and Training

Currently, the County uses accounting software for the general ledger (the “System”) that has been
adapted to conform to the County’s specific fund and account structure. As a result, the System support
that is required is specific to the County and if support for this version of the System were discontinued,
the continuity of accounting operations could be threatened. Further, due to the uniqueness of the
customized System a generic training platform is not accessible and, therefore, the training provided to
the County must come from individuals from the System provider that are familiar with adaptions

made. As a result, the sustainability of the available training is dependent on individuals familiar with the
System as it is adapted for the County.

We recommend the County implement a plan to ensure that System support and training are in place to
ensure continuity of the accounting operations for the County.

County’s Response: The County is working to develop a plan to ensure that adequate System support
and training are in place. As noted above, the County is undertaking a plan to modernize its ERP system,
including an evaluation of the efficiencies of the SAP accounting software.

American Rescue Plan Act (“ARPA”) Spending

As of December 31, 2023, the County has received its total allocation of $178.5 million of ARPA funds
and has recognized using a total of $98.6 million in revenues. Recognizing that the remaining $79.9
million funds must be committed by December 31, 2024 and spent by December 31, 2026, we
recommend the County stay diligent with its existing detail plans to use the funds under the allowable
uses including 1) Revenue Replacement, 2) Responding to the Public Health Emergency/Negative
Economic Impacts, 3) Premium Pay, 4) Water, Sewer, and Broadband Infrastructure, and (5) Negative
Economic Impacts (such as housing assistance to affected communities).

County’s Response: The County is aware of the deadlines and has a plan in place to obligate the funds
by the December 31, 2024 deadline.

Loan Repayment Agreement

At December 31, 2023, the County’s Utilities Aggregation Fund reports a receivable due {from Erie
County Medical Center Corporation (“ECMCC”) approximating $12,706,000, which is due to the
County’s General Fund. A portion of the General Fund balance, $9,066,000, is considered a long-term
receivable by the County, which governmental generally accepted accounting principles considers
nonspendable fund balance. Although a portion of this has been repaid subsequent to year-end and the
balance has been acknowledged by ECMCC, the County and ECMCC have not entered into a written
agreement for the remaining loan outstanding.

While improvements in communication between the County and ECMCC have been made, we
recommend that the County formalize a process with ECMCC to ensure that ECMCC acknowledge the
payments outstanding each year to ensure that the County and ECMCC are in agreement on the amounts
owed and the plan to repay each year.

COMM. 16E-10
Page 5 of 7



EXHIBITI

County’s Response: Although a formal agreement between the County and ECMCC does not exist,
management from both entities are in regular communication regarding the cash flows between the
entities.

Succession Planning

Many governments face the challenge of ensuring continuity and consistency of service delivery due to
employee turnover. In instances where several long-tenured government employees are eligible to retire,
there is a concern that not enough qualified or available workers will be prepared to replace them. The
Government Finance Officers Association (the “GFOA”) encourages governments to address the
following key issues and develop strategies concerning succession planning, including:

e Continually assess potential employee turnover. Making career planning discussions as part of
a regular and ongoing performance review process assists in assessing potential turnover.
Department heads are a good resource in helping to identify employees that may be planning to
leave.

e Develop written policies and procedures to facilitate knowledge transfer. Knowledge transfer
is a critical component of succession management. There should be written procedures in place to
formalize the knowledge transfer and meetings should be held with departing staff to document
job responsibilities.

e Encourage personal professional development. Personal professional development benefits the
organization over the long term by helping employees gain the skills they need to assume
increased responsibilities.

e Consider non-traditional hiring strategies. Options such as part-time work, job-sharing,
flexible schedules and flexible-place arrangements are providing mechanisms to both meet the
needs of the organization and employees.

County’s Response: The County acknowledges the challenges from succession planning and is working
on ways to address the risks involved in employee turnover and recruitment.

COMM. 16E-10
Page 6 of 7



EXHIBIT I

Future Reporting Requirements

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) has adopted new pronouncements, which may
have a future impact upon the County. These should be evaluated to determine the extent the County will
be impacted in future years.

GASB Statement No. 99— The County is required to implement the remainder of GASB Statement No.
99, Omnibus 2022, effective for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024. The objectives of this
Statement are to enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the
consistency of authoritative literature by addressing (1) practice issues that have been identified during
implementation and application of certain GASB Statements and (2) accounting and financial reporting
for financial guarantees.

GASB Statement No. 100—The County is required to implement GASB Statement No. 100, Accounting
Changes and Ervor Corrections—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 62, effective for the fiscal year
ending December 31, 2024. The objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting requirements
for accounting changes and error corrections.

GASB Statement No. 101—The County is required to implement GASB Statement No. 101,
Compensated Absences, effective for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024. The objective of this
Statement is to improve financial reporting by addressing issues related to the recognition and
measurement for compensated absences.

GASE Statement No. 102—The County is required to implement GASB Statement No. 102, Certain Risk
Disclosures, effective for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2025. The objective of this Statement is to
improve financial reporting by providing users of financial statements with essential information that
currently is not often provided. The disclosures will provide users with timely information regarding
certain concentrations or constraints and related events that have occurred or have begun to occur that
make a government vulnerable to a substantial impact. As a result, users will have better information with
which to understand and anticipate certain risks to a government’s financial condition.

GASB Statement No. 103—The County is required to implement GASB Statement No. 103, Financial
Reporting Model Improvements, effective for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2026. The objective of
this statement is to improve key components of the financial reporting model to enhance its effectiveness
in providing information that is essential for decision making and assessing a government’s
accountability. This Statement also addresses certain application issues.

COMM. 16E-10
Page 7 of 7



Erie County Legislature
Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

SUBJECT
Erie County's Federal Financial Assistance
COMM. 16E-11 COMPTROLLER Audit Report for 2023
Attachments

24COMM. 16E-11




T
]

Erie County COMPTROLLER -
KeviN R. HARDWICK -

September 17, 2024

Honorable Members

Erie County Legislature
92 Franklin Street, Fourth Floor

Buffalo, New York 14202

Mark C. Poloncarz, Esq.
Erie County Executive

95 Franklin Street, 16" Floor
Buffalo, New York 14202

Dear Honorable Members and County Executive Poloncarz:

Enclosed is a copy of Erie County’s Federal Financial Assistance Audit Report for the year
ended December 31, 2023. The report is required pursuant to the Federal Single Audit Act of

1984.
Copies of this report have been filed with the Federal Audit Clearinghouse, as well as

pertinent pass-through organizations.

If you have any questions regarding the report, please contact me at 858-8400.

Very truly yours,

LR Sl
Kevin R. Hardwick, Ph.D.
Erie County Comptroller

Enclosure

cc: Mark Cornell, Director, Budget and Management
Erie County Audit Committee Members
Drescher & Malecki LLP (without Enclosure)

95 FRANKLIN STREET * Room 1100 * Burraro, N.Y. » 14202
PHONE: (716) 858-8400 * Fax: (716) 858-6195 » www.etie.gov/comptroller
COMM. 16E-11
Page 1 of 21



COUNTY OF ERIE,
NEW YORK

Federal Awards Information
for the Year Ended December 31, 2023 and
Independent Auditors’ Reports

COMM. 16E-11
Page 2 of 21



COMM. 16E-11
Page 3 of 21



COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK
Table of Contents
Year Ended December 31, 2023

Page

Independent Auditors” Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial

Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards ..........ocovevviieennnnnns 1
Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal

Program and Report on Internal Control over Compliance in

Accordance with the Uniform GUIdANCE ........ooveeviereeirererecee s s 3
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal AWards ........ociveecimmremieiemess e sanes 6
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards ............ccoooiiniiie 10
Schedule of Findings and Questioned COStS .......ccoiiiiimiiiiiei st i 11
Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings and Corrective Action Plan ... 12

COMM. 16E-11

Page 4 of 21



COMM. 16E-11
Page 5 of 21



©

i X

DRESCHER & MALECKI LLP
2721 Transit Road, Suite 111
Elma, New York 14059
Telephone: 716.565.2299

Fax: 716.389.5178

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable County Executive

Honorable County Comptroller

Honorable Members of the County Legislature
County of Erie, New York:

We have audited in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (“Government Auditing Standards”), the financial
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component
units, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the County of Erie, New York (the “County”) as of and for the year ended December
31, 2023, (with Erie Community College (the “College™) for the year ended August 31, 2023), and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated June 14, 2024 (which report includes an emphasis of
matter paragraph regarding the implementation of GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based
Information Technology Arrangements). Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the
financial statements of the Erie County Fiscal Stability Authority (“ECFSA”), Buffalo and Erie County
Industrial Land Development Corporation, Inc. (“ILDC”), Erie County Medical Center Corporation
(“ECMCC”), and the Eric Community College Foundation, Inc. (“Foundation”), as described in our
report on the County’s financial statements. This report does not include the results of the other auditors’
testing of internal control over financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported on
separately by those auditors. The financial statements of the Erie Community College Foundation, Inc.
and the Auxiliary Services Corporation of the Erie Community College, Inc. were not audited in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the County's internal
control over financial reporting (“internal control”) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less

COMM. 16E-11
Page 6 of 21



severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to metit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the County’s internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Onsder + By wf

June 14, 2024

COMM. 16E-11
Page 7 of 21



DRESCHER & MALECKI LLP
@ 2721 Transit Road, Suite 111
Elma, New York 14059
4. Telephone: 716.565.2299
# Fax: 716.389.5178 Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH
THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Honorable County Executive

Honorable County Comptroller

Honorable Members of the County Legislature
County of Erie, New York:

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the County of Erie, New York’s (the “County””) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of the County’s major federal programs for the year ended
December 31, 2023. The County’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

The County’s basic financial statements include the operations of the Erie County Fiscal Stability
Authority (“ECFSA”), Erie Community College (the “College”), Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land
Development Corporation, Inc. (“ILDC”), Eriec County Medical Center Corporation (“ECMCC”), and
Erie County Community College Foundation, Inc. (“Foundation”), which reported expending federal
awards which are not included in the County’s schedule of expenditures of federal awards during the year
ended December 31, 2023. Our compliance audit, described below, did not include the operations of the
ECFSA, College, ILDC, ECMCC, or the Foundation because other auditors were engaged to perform
such audits in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, as applicable.

In our opinion, the County complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred
to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year
ended December 31, 2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America (“GAAS”); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (“Government
Auditing Standards”); and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (“CFR”)
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (“Uniform Guidance”). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are
further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the County and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we

COMM. 16E-11
Page 8 of 21



have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the County’s compliance with
the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of
laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the
County’s federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on the County’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material
noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is
higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above is considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about
the County’s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test
basis, evidence regarding the County’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to
above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

e Obtain an understanding of the County’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal
control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material

COMM. 16E-11
Page 9 of 21



weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses,
as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over
compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component units, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County as of and for the year ended December
31, 2023 (with Erie Community College for the year ended August 31, 2023), and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements. We issued our
report thereon dated June 14, 2024, which contained unmodified opinions on those financial statements
and an emphasis of matter paragraph regarding the implementation of GASB Statement No. 96,
Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements. We did not audit the financial statements of
the Erie County Fiscal Stability Authority (“ECFSA™), which represent 3.4% and 2.0% of the assets and
revenues, respectively, of the governmental activities. We did not audit the financial statements of the
Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation, Inc. (“ILDC”), which represent
12.1% and 5.9% of the assets and revenues, respectively, of the business-type activities. We did not audit
the financial statements of Erie County Medical Center Corporation (“ECMCC”), a discretely presented
component unit. We did not audit the financial statements of the Erie Community College Foundation,
Inc. (“Foundation”), which is shown as an aggregate discretely presented component unit, and represents
71.8% and 37.7% of the assets and revenues, respectively, of the aggregate discretely presented other
component units. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have
been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the ECFSA, ILDC,
ECMCC, and Foundation, is based solely on the reports of such other auditors. Our audit was conducted
for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the basic
financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for
purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the
basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule
of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

Dnschec 4 Bleds s

September 5, 2024

COMM. 16E-11
Page 10 of 21



COMM. 16E-11
Page 11 of 21



COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended December 31, 2023

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantar Program or Cluster Title (1a)

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE:
Pussed through NYS Office of Temporary and Disability Assistance:
SNAP Cluster:
State Administrative Matching Grants for the

Suppl | Nutrition Assi: Program
Total SNAP Cluster
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT:
Direct Programs:
Community Development Block Gram—Entitlement Grauts Cluster:
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants

LEmergency Solutions Grants Program
HOME Investment Partnerships Program
Continuum of Care Program
Passed thiough NYS Dept. of Health - Burcau of Community Services:
Lead Outreach Grants

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE:
Dircct Programs:
Services for Trafticking Vietims
Treatment Court Discretionary Grant Program

Local Law Enforcement Block Grants Program
DNA Backlog Reduction Program
Paul Coverdell Forensic Sciences Improvement Grant Program
Criminal and Juvenile Justice and Mental [Tealth Collaboration Program
Sccond Chance Act Prisoner Reentry Tnitiative
Smart proscculion iniliative
Comprehensive Opioid Abuse Site-Busced Program
Comprehensive Opioid Abuse Site-Based Program
Total ALN 16838
Equitable Sharing Program
Passed through NYS Division of Criminal Justice Services:
Paul Coverdell Forensic Sciences Improvement Grant Progiam
Passed through the City of Buffalo:
Edward Byme Maemorial Justice Assistance Grant Program
Passed through NYS OiTice of Victim Services:
Crime Victim Assistance
Crime Victim Assistance
Total ALN 16,575

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR:
Passed through NYS Office for the Aging:
Senior Community Service Employment Program
Passed through the Buffalo and Eric County Workforee Investment Board:

Work Incenlives Grants

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LAROR

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION:

Dircet Programs:

National Priority Salety Programs
Passcd through NYS Department of Transportation:
Higinvay Planning and Construction Cluster:

Highway Planning and Counstruction

Total Highway Planning and Construction Cluster

Transit Services Programs Cluster:

Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities

Total Transit Scrvices Programs Cluster

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Federal
Assistance Pass-Through Passed Total
Listing Entity Identifying Through to Federal
Number (1b) Numher (1) Subrecipients Expenditures (1d)

10.561 N’A s - 13.808,653

- 13.808,653

- 13.808,653

14.218 NA - N 3,632,437
Total Community Development Block Grant—Entitlement Grants Cluster - 3,632,437
14.231 NA . 478,445
14,239 NA - 231,469
14.267 N'A 6.264,713 6,264,713
14,904 C030251GG/CO30251 = 1.603,614
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 6.264,713 12.210,678
16.320 N/A 121,658
16.585 N'A 187.866
Grants 10 Encourage Arrest Policies and Enforcement of Protcction Orders Program 16.590 15J0VW-21-GG-02031-ICJR - 323,456
16.592 N‘A 29,327
16,741 FY202] DNA CEBR/FY2022 DNA CAPACITY ENIIA 732,898
16,742 N’A 43,046
16.745 FEDERAL - 81.856
16.812 N/A - 226,420
16.825 N/A - 167,709
16.83% 2020-AR-BX-0109 - 278.067
16.83% 2017-AR-BX-K023 - 93810

= 371,877
16.922 N/A - (16,444)
16.742 N‘A 41,940
16.738 N/A - 7,820
16.575 0VS01-C10953GG-1080200 . 443,604
16,575 C11260GG/C10954GG/C11261GG . ~ 222,062

- 665,666

2.985.095

17.235 N/A 747,963
17.266 N'A - 86.101
834.064

20.616 N'A - 43,629
20.205 N'A - 2,994,668

B - 2.994,668

20.513 N'A = 92.392

. 92.392

P 3,130,689

(continued)

COMM. 16E-11
Page 12 of 21



COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended December 31, 2023

Assistance Pass-Through Passed Total
Listing Entity Identifying Through to Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor Prograom or Cluster Title (141 Number (1h) Number (1¢) Subrecipients Expenditures (14d)

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY:
Direct Programs:

Coronavirus Relief Fund 21,019 N'A - (23,615)
Coronuvirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds 21,027 N/A 1.365.696 24,393.066
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY 1.365.696 24369451

U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY:

Direct Program:

Great Lakes Program 66.469 00E02491 - 17,718
Gieat Lakes Program 66.469 N/A = 420,344
Total ALN 66,469 - 438,002

Passed through NYS Department ol Healih:
Beach Monitoring and Notification Program Implementation Grants 66,472 T-023286 - 9,525

TOTAL U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY - 447,587

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION:
Passed through NYS Department of Health:
Special Education-Granls for Infants and Familics 84,181 N/A = 346,948
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - 546,948

U.S. ELECTION ASSISTANCE COMMISSION:
Passed through NYS Board ol Eleclions:
Help America Vote Act Requirements Payments 90,401 C003220 - 304,606
TOTAL U.S. ELECTION ASSISTANCE COMMISSION - 304.606

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES:
Dircct Programs:
Special Programs for the Aging. Title [11, Part 1, Discase Prevention and

Health Promotion Scrvices 93.043 N/A - 154,094
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services-Projects of Regional
and National Significance 93,243 FEDERAL/IH79TT(R4841-01 751924 1,199,946
Immunization Cooperative Agreements 93,268 C36928GG - 37,672
Congressional Directives 93.493 N/A - 42,310
Passcd through Health Research Incorporated:
Public Health Emergency Preparedness 93.069 1601-13 . (6)
Public Health Emergency Preparcdness 93,069 16oI-17 - 377273
Public Health Emergency Preparcdness 93,069 16D1-18 - 181.028
Public Health Emergency Preparedncess 93.069 1799-18 - 10429
Public Health Emergency Preparedness 93,069 1799-19 - 19,022
Total ALN 93.069 - 387.746
Epidcmiology and Laboratory Capacity for Infectious Discases (ELC) 93.323 15-1043-06/7253-01/15-1043-06 - 1,743,867
Public ITealth Emurgency Response: Cooperative Agreement for Emergency
Response: Public Mealth Crisis Responsc 93.354 N’A - 4,093,278

Passed through National Association of County and City Health Officials:

Medical Reserve Corps Small Grant Program 93.008 N/A - 1,233
Passed through NYS Office for the Aging:
Aging Cluster:

Special Programs for the Aging, Title 111. Part B-Grants for

Supportive Services and Senior Centers 93.044 N/A - 994,047
Special Programs for the Aging. Title [11. Part C-Nutrition Services 93.045 N/A - 3,691,580
Nutrition Services Incentive Program 93,053 N/A . 6683811

Taral Aging Cluster - 5354438
National Family Caregiver Supporl. Title 111, Part E 93,052 N/A - 815,202
Medicare Emollment Assistance Program 93.071 N/A - 132,548
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) Research.

Demonstrations and Evaluations 093,779 N/A - 77312

(continued)

COMM. 16E-11
Page 13 of 21



COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended December 31, 2023

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor Program or Cluster Title (12)

Passcd through NYS Departineat of Health:
Family Planning Services
Immunization Cooperalive Agreements
Medicard Cluster:
Medical Aas
Total Medicaid Cluster

tance Program

Preventive Health Services-Sexually Transmited Discases Control Grants
Matemal and Child Health Services Block Grant to the States
Matcermal and Child Health Services Block Grant (o the States
Materna! and Child [Tealth Services Block Grant to the States
Materal and Child Heaith Services Block Grant to the States
Toral ALN 93.994

Passed through Columbia University:
Drug Abuse and Addiction Research Programs
Drug Abusc and Addiction Rescarch Programs
Toral ALN93.279

Passed through NYS Oftice of Temporary and Disability Assistance:
Temporary Assistance [or Needy Familics
Child Support Enforcement
Refugee and Entiant Assistance-Stale Administered Programs
Law-income Home Encrgy Assistunce
CCDF Clusier:
Child Care and Development Block Grant
Total CCDF Cluster
Sicphanic Tubbs Jones Child Welfare Services Program
Passed through NYS Oftice of Children and Family Services:
Foster Care, Tille TV-E
Social Services Block Grant
Tamily Violence Pievention and Services/

Domestic Violence Shelter und Supportive Services

Passed through NYS Department of Mental [ealth:
Block Grants for Commumnity Mental Health Services
Passed through NYS Olfice ol Alcoholistm and Substance Abusc:
Blovk Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse
Passed through Cathalic Charilics of BulTalo:
Alzheimer’s Discase Initiative: Specialized Supportive Services Project
(ADI-SSS) thru Prevention and Public Health Funds (PPHF)
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

CORPORATION FOR NATIONAL AND COMMUNITY SERVICE:
Dircet Program:
Retired and Senior Volunteer Program
TOTAL CORPORATION FOR NATIONAL AND COMMUNITY SERVICE

SOCIAL SECURITY ADMINISTRATION:
Direct Progrant:
Disability Insurance/SS1 Cluster:
Supplementary Sccurity Income

Cotal Disability [nsurance/SSI Cluster

TOTAL SOCIAL SECURITY ADMINISTRATION

Assistance Pass-Through
Listing Entity Tdentifying
Number (1b) Number (lc)
93.217 C37867GG
93,268 C32514GG
93.778 N/A
93.977 C31861GG/C37235GG
93.994 DOHO1-C30890GG-3450000
93.994 DOH01-C3025 1 GG-3450000
93.994 DO CONTRACT C-017399
93.994 C37700GG
93.279 GGO135428
93,279 20-458-HE
93,558 N/A
93.563 N/A
93,566 N/A
93,568 N/A
93.375 N/A
93.643 N/A
93.658 N/A
93.667 N/A
93.671 CO2R79R
93.95% N/A
93.939 N/A
93.763 N/A
94,002 N/A
96.006 N/A

Passed Total
Through to Federal
Subrecipients Expenditures (id)

. 558,548
- 24411
= 10,222,788

- 10,222,788
’ 438 368

(50,893)
123,120
. 1321474
- 152,318
. 1,546,019
- 7244
7 28376
. 35,620
. 77,697,964
5,680,005
. 386,074
52,114,944
- 46,010,997
. 46,010,997
z 1,448,407

= 20,622,391

- 7,387,966
. 32,226
= 1,735,852
- 7,119,132
- 217,127
- 247778455

90,534
- 90,334
- 24115
4 24013
- 24,115

(continued)

COMM. 16E-11
Page 14 of 21



COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended December 31, 2023

(conctuded)
Assistance Pass-Through Passed Total
Listing Entity Identifying Through to Federal
Federal Grantor/Puss-Through Grantor Program or Cluster Title (12) Number (1b) Number (Lc) Subrecipicnts Expenditures (1d)
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY:
Direct Program:
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 C843261 T§34269/C191379/C970309 315223
Passcd through NYS Division ol Homeland Security and Emergency Services:
Emergency Management Performance Grants 97.042 N/A - 351,678
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 C191379 - 3,198)
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 NIA = 4,309,711
Total ALN 97.067 4306513
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY - 4973414
TOTAL FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE (le) 5 630400 % 31504319

The notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are an integral part of this schedule.

-9.

COMM. 16E-11
Page 15 of 21



COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended December 31, 2023

1.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) includes the federal
grant activity of County of Erie, New York (the “County”) under programs of the federal govenment
for the year ended December 31, 2023. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance
with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (“Uniform Guidance”).
Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the County, it is not
intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net position or cash flows of the
County. The following notes were identified on the Schedule:

(a) Includes all federal award programs of the County of Erie, New York. The federal expenditures
of ECFSA, ILDC, ECMCC, the Foundation, and the College have not been included.

(b) Source: Federal Assistance Listing Numbers, previously known as Catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance.

(c) Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.

(d) Prepared under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and
includes all federal award programs.

(e) A reconciliation to the financial statements is available.
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized follo